
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, June 2, 2021

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

21-0729 Common Council Meeting Minutes of May 19, 2021

 

CC Minutes 5-19-21.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

21-0772 Reappointment of Linda Marx to the Board of Review

 

6-1-21 reappointment BOR.pdfAttachments:

21-0684 Certificate of Appreciation for Health Officer, Kurt Eggebrecht.

 

Legislative History 

5/19/21 Common Council held

21-0754 Proclamations:

  - Pride Month

  - CPR & AED Awareness Week

  - Gun Violence Awareness Day

  - Juneteenth Celebration Day

Pride Month Proclamation.pdf

CPR AED Awareness Week Proclamation.pdf

Gun Violence Awareness Day Proclamation.pdf

Juneteenth Celebration Day Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17479
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a1adb577-2b97-4408-a692-6933245ac4fc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17522
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=941c5d75-44bd-4114-b33e-9d6134d5b6f6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17434
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17504
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a11c477d-4b3c-468a-be1c-348f8383a48e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=817cab8b-460d-438e-b0fc-39693def83b8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7cba8afe-1505-4567-9066-1d17a5f6a1e0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31b01275-5703-4663-b1c7-4680962d0905.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

21-0756 COVID-19 Update

 

COVID -19 Cases June 01.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

21-0683 Public Hearing for Rezoning #4-21 for U.S. Venture Inc. from R-1B 

Single-Family District, R-3 Multi-Family District, and P-I Public Institutional 

District to CBD Central Business District.

 

RZ #4-21_Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

21-0749 Public Hearing for W. Prospect Ave. & S. Douglas St. Street Vacation

 

Public Hearing - Prospect and Douglas.pdfAttachments:

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

21-0748 Final Resolution for the W. Prospect Ave. and S. Douglas St. Street 

Vacation

 

Final Resolution Prospect and Douglas.pdfAttachments:

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

21-0657 Request from Mike Krejcarek, 717 N. Richmond Street, for a variance to 

Municipal Code 19-91 (f)(5) to extend driveway 10 feet into greater front 

yard.

 

717 N Richmond St.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17506
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f537a1f8-e74f-4e39-8fac-98f6d2a5c65a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17433
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=61a4dd57-f7cc-4204-bc68-f148c459561f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17499
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0db96ea9-09c1-41e8-8024-07e44882b176.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17498
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c876ec9-3ebd-4b23-892d-182a87b7a955.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17407
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=098b21f0-1d96-4c6c-bf6f-633e59c079ca.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

21-0717 Request from Miller Electric for a permanent street occupancy permit to 

install an overhead pipe bridge structure and associated piers in the 

Douglas Street right-of-way at 702 S. Douglas Street be approved 

contingent on

-Minimum overhead clearance of 17'-5"

-Minimum sidewalk clearance of 4' for ADA compliance

 

Miller Electric-Douglas Street.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0718 Request from Hoffman Planning, Design & Construction to modify the 

permanent street occupancy permit for the YMCA Ramp footings and 

foundations to extend into the right-of-way as follows:

-Oneida Street-5 feet (no change)

-Lawrence Street-7 feet

-Morrison Street-7 feet

-Soldiers Square-8 feet

 

YMCA Ramp footings.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0725 Request from Appleton Downtown Inc. for a street occupancy permit for 

Street Music Week, June 14-18, 2021 in the College Avenue beautification 

strip between Drew Street and Badger Avenue.

 

ADI-Street Music Week.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

21-0370 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Temporary 

Premise Amendment application for Fox Cities Building for the Arts d/b/a 

Trout Museum of Art, Christina Turner, Agent, located at 111 W College 

Ave, on August 27, 2021, contingent upon approval from all departments.

Trout Museum of Art S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17467
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a85f476-f1e3-493a-928d-4055ccfe0ba5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17468
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4d0adcd3-acd7-432b-8a61-bf71929d9fb1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17475
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0cdd7670-4c7f-41c9-9a3e-f4249359d962.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17121
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=81786d77-c2c2-4b28-881c-be6147e227cc.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

5/26/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0696 Reserve "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer License application for RH 

Events LLC d/b/a Poplar Hall, Sandy Emerich, Agent, located at 141 S 

Riverheath Way, contingent upon approval from all departments. 

Poplar Hall.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0735 2021-2022 Additional Alcohol License renewals, contingent upon 

approvals from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2021.

2021-22 Alcohol License Renewals-2nd set FINAL.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0736 Taxi Cab Company License application for Antonio's Transportation 

Service, Corey A. Gaines, Owner, 240 Algoma Blvd, Oshkosh, WI.

Corey Antonio Gaines.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0737 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Temporary 

Premise Amendment application for Fox Cities Building for the Arts d/b/a 

Trout Museum of Art, Christina Turner, Agent, Houdini Plaza, on June 5, 

2021, contingent upon approval from all departments.

Trout Museum Exhibit Opening S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0738 2021-2022 Additional Mechanical Amusement Device License renewals, 

contingent upon approval from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 

2021.

2021 Additional Amusement Devices.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17446
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b5e0233c-4cdc-4e49-af1c-4d15a651e8db.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17485
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b8ad7a2e-4d6e-49e0-9e4a-b1b28d14266a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17486
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=857d59fb-84bb-4e91-aeaf-d35bb572c9d3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17487
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c7b087ca-20bc-4548-b6fa-1de539103dc3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17488
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=72f57d36-78e9-4a81-b948-3dcd4cb63f73.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

21-0590 Request to approve Rezoning #4-21 to rezone 15 parcels in the area 

generally located south of Lawrence Street, west of Durkee Street, north of 

Water Street, and east of Morrison Street (Tax Id #31-2-0159-00, 

#31-2-0160-00, #31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-2-0164-00, 

#31-2-0165-00, #31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, #31-2-0168-00, 

#31-2-0169-00, #31-2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-0172-00, 

#31-2-0173-00, and #31-2-0174-00), including to the centerline of the 

adjacent South Morrison Street, East Lawrence Street, South Durkee 

Street, East Water Street, East Kimball Street, and South Oak Street 

right-of-way, as shown on the attached maps, from R-1B Single-Family 

District, R-3 Multi-Family District, and P-I Public Institutional District to CBD 

Central Business District

StaffReport_USVenture_Rezoning_For05-12-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/12/21 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on June 2, 2021.

21-0695 Request to approve the First Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Final Plat 

as shown on the attached maps and subject to the conditions in the 

attached staff report

StaffReport_FinalPlat_1stAddBroadwayHillsEstates_For5-26-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

21-0715 Resolution #8-R-21 Resolution expressing support for Knowles-Nelson 

Stewardship Program

 

#8-R-21 Knowles-Nelson Program w-attach-rev.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

21-0719 Request to award Unit E-21 Miscellaneous Concrete & Street Excavation 

Repair to Fischer-Ulman Construction, Inc in the amount of $532,500 with a 

6.2% contingency of $33,000 for a project total not to exceed $565,500

 

Award of Contract Unit E-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17341
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ff007887-2a12-46c1-9848-46d99aa46092.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17445
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b08820b1-620b-4acb-84ac-d9af1733403a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17465
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=920a7e1c-0df0-4c48-b0e8-328756ea7247.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17469
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8483a27a-9d28-49ab-adaa-e25177edf98b.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

21-0720 Request to award Unit L-21 Sewer and Water Construction - Lightning 

Drive and Edgewood Drive to Feaker and Sons Co, Inc in the amount of 

$1,004,464 with a 5% contingency of $50,000 for a project total not to 

exceed $1,054,464

 

Award of Contract Unit L-21 Rebid.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0721 Request to award Unit Y-21 Sewer & Water Reconstruction No. 3 to 

Kruczek Construction, Inc in the amount of $797,798 with a 7.5% 

contingency of $60,073 for a project total not to exceed $857,871

 

Award of Contract Unit Y-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0722 Request to award Unit AA-21 Pacific Street over Peabody Park Bridge 

Maintenance to Norcon Corporation in the amount of $207,717 with a 15% 

contingency of $31,157 for a project total not to exceed $238,874

 

Award of Contract Unit AA-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0723 Request to approve the following 2021 Budget amendments:

Public Works Capital Projects Fund

Spartan Drive Land +$73,107

Lightning Drive Land - $73,107

Stormwater Utility

Land +$64,893

Storm Sewer Reconstruction - $64,893

to reallocate positive bid variances to purchase land for future Spartan 

Drive and associated stormwater management (2/3 vote of Council 

required)

 

Land Acquisition.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/24/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17470
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b6b6f00-cae3-4fd2-aa6b-177498cf152a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17471
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=701c63d4-d7fd-4fdd-b76b-62d9495385e5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17472
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a7232f5a-99f3-46de-a1af-841b6ff9ec0e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17473
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=16c13c97-9cf6-4193-a925-00a21f8fb941.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

21-0691 **CRITICAL TIMING** Request to approve a six (6) month extension to the 

Planning Option Agreement with Merge, LLC (d/b/a Merge Urban 

Development Group) for a potential mixed-use development located on the 

former Blue Ramp and Conway Hotel sites

Merge Option Extension Memo_5-26-21.pdf

20-0044 - MERGE - 2nd Extension - 05-19-2021.pdf

Merge Option Term Extension #1_November 2020.pdf

Signed Planning Option Agreement_Merge_2-6-20.pdf

Map_Blue Ramp+Conway Hotel.pdf

Letter of Intent_Merge_11-29-19.pdf

Merge Projects + References.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

21-0692 **CRITICAL TIMING** Request to approve the Offer to Purchase from Bose 

1 Investments, LLC and 4 Ross Investments, LLC, and/or its assigns, to 

purchase Lot 1 of CSM 3609 (Tax Id #31-9-5712-00), Lot 26 (Tax Id 

#31-9-5712-26), Lot 27 (Tax Id #31-9-5712-27), Lot 28 (Tax Id 

#31-9-5712-28) and Lot 29 (Tax Id #31-9-5712-29) Southpoint Commerce 

Park Plat No. 3, comprising a total of approximately 30.44 acres, at a 

purchase price of $1,217,600.00 ($40,000 per acre)

Bose 1 Investments and 4 Ross Investments OTP Memo_5-26-21.pdf

Bose 1 Investments and 4 Ross Investments OTP_5-18-21.pdf

SouthpointCommerceParkMap_SubjectParcel_5_2021.pdf

SPCP Deed Restrictions.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

5/26/21 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

21-0699 Award Unit R-21 Chemical Root Foaming of Sanitary Sewers to Duke's 

Root Control in an amount not to exceed $25,000.

 

R-21 Bid Tab.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/25/21 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17441
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=67a423ec-2f0a-45da-986f-e5e3db177a41.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c98c7bf2-eac5-44aa-8f7b-9169b174faf9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=77208e2d-0605-4b67-8681-3c1e7433072b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b91c8390-19d5-4a82-a397-789c81f8f1db.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1471a1d0-59ab-4d75-a0bb-f4a1fb0c4539.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53e80fe1-b09b-4cad-8aa0-1f0f9600db05.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=802e4c9c-7666-4664-af92-5085e4e05f4f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17442
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e567e0c8-b523-4f8c-b78f-74e1aff6d2e3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dbd95f4e-fec1-4330-ba28-f2782b1922e3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=59ce23ec-a92f-4805-bead-204a2a983953.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c1e042b-1ce3-41ca-bfcf-64c98cf5253b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17449
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d0621ab8-9976-4418-b354-bc3d6794f743.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

21-0700 Award the Sole Source Purchase of Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild 

Parts through Evoqua Water Technologies LLC in the amount of $105,964.

 

210519_Finance Memo_Final Clarifier Rebuild Work.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/25/21 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

21-0701 Award the 2021 Secondary Clarifier Drive Removal, Rebuild, and 

Reinstallation Contract to Sabel Mechanical in the amount of $174,302 

with a 15% contingency of $26,145 for a project total not to exceed 

$200,447.

 

210519_Finance Memo_Final Clarifier Rebuild Work.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/25/21 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

21-0702 Approve Amendment #1 to McMahon contract for 2021 Solids Dewatering 

Equipment Upgrades to increase for additional HVAC design and 

construction management services in the amount of $27,000 resulting in a 

decrease to contingency from $32,587 to $5,587. Overall contract 

increased from $325,872 to $352,872.

 

utilities memo - Engineering Dewatering Equipment 05-21-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/25/21 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

21-0727 Award Organic Recycling Contractor Services to Hsu Growing Supply for 

an extended one (1) year term ending December 31, 2021.

 

210517_UCM_HSU_contract extension 2021.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/25/21 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

Page 8 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17450
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa7dc484-aa88-49af-9d7c-4ca723d7b21b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17451
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a237b51a-2c2c-4d30-875e-dfa54404cc95.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17452
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a4acc8e7-dc4b-4b5c-b3d8-93787fd41c78.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17477
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd89738c-69a4-44af-b423-260f30b8c816.pdf


June 2, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

O. ORDINANCES

21-0755 Ordinance #18-21

 

Ordinances Going to Council 6-2-21.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.

Page 9 City of Appleton Printed on 6/1/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17505
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9af33673-0767-4560-93de-8736c84ed930.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, May 19, 2021

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:01 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Hartzheim

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor 

Jake Woodford

Present: 16 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

21-0687 Common Council Meeting Minutes of May 5, 2021

 

CC Minutes 5-5-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17437
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56cfbf4c-79ae-4646-815f-0456322ba2c9.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

21-0680 APD Officer of the Year Award

 

The APD Officer of the year was presented to Officer Chue Thao

21-0684 Certificate of Appreciation for Health Officer, Kurt Eggebrecht.

 

This Item was held until the next Council meeting.

21-0685 Proclamations:

  - Creative Economy Week

  - Public Works Week

  - Hmong American Day

  - Neurofibromatosis Awareness Day Proclamation

  - American Legion Poppy Day Proclamation

  - CDC Mask Guidance Update Proclamation

 

Creative Economy Week Proclamation.pdf

Public Works Week Proclamation.pdf

Hmong American Day Proclamation.pdf

Neurofibromatosis Awareness Day Proclamation.pdf

American Legion Poppy Day Proclamation.pdf

CDC Mask Guidance Update Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

The Proclamations were presented

21-0682 Board and Commission Appointments

 

5-19-21 Appointments'Plan Comm'BOH'BOR (002).pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Smith, that the 

appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Absent: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17430
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17434
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17435
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8827ee39-10d6-4d4f-8926-b8da4000a632.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2402985-d424-4f1e-b8a1-8f3a9d3794ac.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e3132f5-0148-49c1-a343-494ed2acd7ee.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=003f2c88-6e75-4df3-b964-a2f54c184b95.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=be5c189f-001d-4dab-b9c2-0ecb9d7166c1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7bfbbd60-db53-42ce-8073-1b8f11ae1a86.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17432
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=498426c9-4ef2-4aef-ba67-828335ee5f21.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0681 COVID-19 Update

 

COVID -19 Cases 5-19-21.pdfAttachments:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

21-0675 Initial Resolution for Oak St. and Kimball St. Street Vacation

(Taken up under Consolidated Action Items)

InitialResolution_OakStKimballSt_StreetVacation.pdfAttachments:

This Initial Resolution was approved

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Firkus moved, Alderperson Doran seconded, to approve the 

agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

21-0608 Request for a permanent street occupancy permit for landscape islands 

to extend into the S. Frontage Road right-of-way no more than 27 feet at 

2245 W. College Avenue.

 

Permanent Street Occupancy 2255 W College Ave.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17431
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c0d14b1-f838-4336-ae59-1441151ffeaa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17425
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=09834edd-bfe0-4c85-b5f4-463f3f284297.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17359
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec1d9b7b-d1d0-4218-9894-ff821c7fdc75.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0609 Approve E. Kimball Street and Oak Street Vacation as shown on Exhibit 

"A".

 

Kimball St-Oak Street Vacation.pdfAttachments:

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

21-0581 Class "B" Beer License application for Hmong Express LLC d/b/a 

Hmong Express, Ka Ying Thao, Agent, located at 1216 N Division St, 

contingent upon approvals from all departments.

Hmong Express.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0607 2021-2022 Alcohol License Renewals, contingent upon approvals from 

all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2021.

2021 Liquor License Renewals.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0638 2021-2022 Mechanical Amusement Device License renewals, contingent 

upon approvals from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2021.

2021 Amusement Devices.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0642 2021-2022 Cigarette and Tobacco Product License renewals.

2021 Cigarette.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0650 Salvage Dealer License application for Mach IV Motors, Kara Tullberg, 

Applicant, located at 600 E Hancock St, contingent upon approval from 

all departments.

Mach IV Motors S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0651 Salvage Dealer License application for Mr C's Motorcycles, Janet Ristau, 

Applicant, located at 724 S Outagamie St, contingent upon approval from 

all departments.

Mr C's Motorcycles S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17360
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5da95c2b-2865-4417-aeba-bdb114908849.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17332
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cadde08d-e727-429f-958d-4bf33213a2e1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17358
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=54d39cbe-7150-4724-a3df-f0b9e6f52312.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17388
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=29e5d101-c6d7-4dcc-a77d-143da3b3d5f1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17392
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b61524b4-dc16-4b32-9258-ba88ff634b9d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17400
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=567d9e4e-3b88-4455-a758-bf04708bf74e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17401
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=697886d7-636a-4553-ac8d-bc9509e4e7d6.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0652 Salvage Dealer License application for Golper Supply Co, Inc., David 

Golper, Applicant, located at 1810 W Edgewood Dr, contingent upon 

approval from all departments.

Golper Supply Co S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0653 Pet Store License application for Just Pets, Craig Weborg, Applicant, 

located at 2009 N Richmond St, contingent upon approval from all 

departments.

Just Pets S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0654 Pet Store License application for HSA Corporation d/b/a Pet Supplies 

Plus, Angela DeHaan, Applicant, located at 702 W Northland Ave, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

Pet Supplies Plus S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0655 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License Change of Agent 

application for Urban Modern Kitchen LLC d/b/a Urban Modern Kitchen, 

Regina Hueckman, New Agent, located at 800 E Wisconsin Ave, 

contingent upon approval from Appleton Police Department.

Regina R Hueckman S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0658 Secondhand Article Dealer License application for The Statement Piece 

LLC, Lena-Sara Gustman, Applicant, located at 745 W College Ave, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

The Statement Piece S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17402
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b8f5a236-6c26-4782-8635-13199018f615.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17403
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e2ca0fcf-91a3-4463-bd36-3f8983e57ded.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17404
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4d095f53-c570-4b13-8eda-0ad2031c1ddd.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17405
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e000727c-7535-4957-9bdb-37688886ef6d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17408
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=23cfbeeb-ebaf-4657-96b2-5fe84a062634.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0592 Request to approve the street discontinuance to vacate portions of South 

Oak Street and East Kimball Street public right-of-way, generally located 

south of East Lawrence Street and east of South Morrison Street, subject 

to the condition in the attached staff report, and adopt the Initial 

Resolution and exhibit map

StaffReport_OakStKimballSt_StreetVacation_For05-12-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0593 Request to approve the dedication of land for public right-of-way for East 

Lawrence Street, generally located south and east of the intersection of 

Morrison Street and Lawrence Street (part of Tax Id #31-2-0162-00, 

#31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0159-00, and #31-2-0160-00), as shown on the 

attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_LawrenceEastOfMorrison_StreetDedication_For05-12-21.

pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

21-0604 Action Item:  Resolution for DNR Grant Application for the David & Rita 

Nelson River Crossing Bridge and Trail

 

DNR Grant Resolution.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

21-0634 Award the Engineering Contract for the 2021 Pierce Park Pavement 

Renovation Project to the Rettler Corporation in the amount of $39,600 

plus a 10% contingency for a total not to exceed a project engineering 

cost of $43,560.

 

2021 Pierce Park Pavement Renovation Project Design.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17343
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f1867c4e-7e92-46ff-8c05-9507df9a22b8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17344
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e94bd95d-a42e-4b07-9df1-aeb36b13475a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17355
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c9a0f3d-1505-4ac9-a3cd-4fc56bdc3041.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17384
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c4055f08-0244-4e00-8277-ce730a4c7754.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0635 Request to reallocate $20,790 positive bid variance from our Coop Road 

Asphalt Resurfacing Project to the asphalt paving of a widened shoulder 

along CTH E (Apple Creek Road) in the 2021 Asphalt Capital Paving 

Program (4240).       

 

Coop Road Asphal Resurfacing Project.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0636 Request to rescind the 2019-2020 Personal property tax bills for 

Wisconsin Registered Agent LLC totaling $109.72.  

 

Request to rescind Personal property tax bills.pdf

2019 tax bill acct 31199275710.pdf

2020 tax bill acct 31199275710.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0637 Request to approve Land Dedication Agreement for Lightning Drive and 

Stormwater Pond with Apple Tree Appleton Four LLC. 

 

18-0513 - Apple Tree - Land Dedication Agreement - FINAL.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0641 Request to award Change Order 2 for the Phase I Lake Station 

Construction Contract to Miron Construction Company in an amount 

$14,038.43 decreasing project contingency from $187,485.35 to 

$173,446.92.  

Change Order 2- Lake Station Project 05-06-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0644 Request to award the City of Appleton’s “Municipal Services Building 

Solar Installation Project” contract to Current Electric in the amount of 

$386,200 with a contingency of $50,000 for a project total not to exceed 

$436,200.  

 

2021 MSB Solar Project.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17385
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ecbf8c4-95d1-43f0-8966-482723e3946b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17386
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ddaeb476-af57-4f98-a94c-bff480bf5117.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5e7a253c-03c9-468c-9657-23ceef007b3f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=db334968-41f6-4894-bd9d-b7cc59ce99fa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17387
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c5c4890-3e3d-48ae-a0ad-acd02f6178a2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17391
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=06edf41d-ab77-4549-a3cf-250738040830.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17394
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c11cd038-aabd-4c45-b5ff-8a5e2959fb52.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

21-0677 Request to approve a lease (initial term of 1 year with 4 annual renewal 

terms) with Erv Van Camp to farm the undeveloped land at 110 and 210 

W. Edgewood Drive, estimated to be approximately 21.25 acres, at the 

rental rate of $60 per acre for the initial term, with 5% annual escalators, 

with no crop loss provision

FarmLeaseMemo_110&210 W Edgewood_5-19-21.pdf

0333 - Van Camp Farm Lease - Edgewood Drive (jlg).pdf

Edgewood Farm Lease Map EXHIBIT A.pdf

EXHIBIT B Small Exposure Leases.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

21-0631 Award Unit F-21, Sanitary and Storm Sewer Cleaning and Televising, to 

Green Bay Pipe and TV, LLC in an amount not to exceed $272,500.

 

F-21 Contract Award Form.pdf

F-21 Bid Tab.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0633 Award the Lead Service Line Replacement Plan to Arcadis in an amount 

not to exceed $52,626.

 

Lead Service Line Replacement Plan.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

21-0618 Request to modify the Salary Administration Policy regarding assigned 

shift change.

 

Assigned Shift Change.pdf

Salary Administration Policy changes 2021.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17427
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f794c109-1d5a-4211-a96d-9da7768bf5ec.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ed4dd009-7b67-468a-85b3-c32b49f01327.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6aef6ad2-4d1a-4d20-8ddc-01af016fb19a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6c6428da-28be-4e7b-a9a5-02334c452a1b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17381
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6a541b65-a9ac-43e6-b385-517f34cfdf90.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fc81a000-5ab5-462a-88d9-67513c882504.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17383
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c662624-80df-4191-86ac-3b49f77d4313.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17368
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=38ecbdbb-8d18-45fe-b045-1b1345ae58a5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=adda9f7e-dc53-409b-b7bc-2b0aef5ed66f.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0619 Request to approve Department of Public Works - Parking Utility to 

eliminate one full time Ramp Attendant position.  

 

DPW Parking TO Change.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

21-0645 Noise Variance Request

Noise Variance Mile of Music.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

21-0686 Oak/Kimball Street Vacation - Consolidated Action Items

21-0609 Municipal Services Committee

21-0592 City Plan Commission

21-0675 Initial Resolution

 

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Prohaska, that the 

Consolidated Action Items be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17369
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cf2411c5-6fb6-4e37-8732-6cab63829baf.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17395
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53324b57-54c3-406a-9b5c-023e0ddde24a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17436


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0679 Ordinance #17-21 to Temporarily Amend Council Rules Pertaining to 

Council, Board and Commission Meetings in Response to the 

Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19)

 

Ordinance #17-21 for 5-19-21 Council.pdfAttachments:

Smith moved, seconded by Reed to approve the Ordinance.

The Ordinance was amended by substitution (see below), therefore, since it 

was replaced with the amendment below, no vote was taken on this original 

motion.

Alderperson Doran moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Ordinance be amended by substitution, to repeal the ordinance effective June 

1, 2021 . This amendment by substitution was further amended (below) to 

repeal the ordinance effective July 1, 2021.  The vote below reflects a vote on 

an amendment to the Ordinance, (by substitution) to repeal Ordinance 74-20, 

temporarily amending the Council Rules effective July 1, 2021. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Joe 

Martin, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Mike Smith, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Joe Prohaska

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson 

Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex Schultz and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

6 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Alfheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Prohaska, that the 

Ordinance be amended by substitution to repeal the Ordinance 74-20 effective 

July 1, 2021 (instead of the original proposal of June 1, 2021). Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Mike Smith, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Joe Prohaska

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson 

Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex Schultz and Alderperson Chad Doran

5 - 

Abstained: Alderperson Joe Martin and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

21-0678 Ordinance #16-21

 

Ordinance #16-21 for 5-19-21 Council.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Ordinance be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 10City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17429
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1634b9a9-b817-4c5f-b9b6-5681bcb93ff2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17428
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4a6b5132-37b3-42ec-8200-53a0519e9b79.pdf


May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

Page 11City of Appleton



May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

RESOLUTION #8-R-21

Resolution expressing support for the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program

May 19, 2021

Submitted By: Alderperson Schultz – District 9, Alderperson Fenton – District 6, 

Alderperson Meltzer – District 2

Referred To: Parks & Recreation Committee

WHEREAS; the Wisconsin Legislature created the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship 

Program in 1989 to preserve valuable natural areas and wildlife habitat, protect water 

quality and fisheries, and expand opportunities for outdoor recreation, and;

WHEREAS; the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program is set to expire in 2022, a 

matching funds program that has supported land acquisition and capital development 

by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR), local governments, and 

nonprofit conservation organizations to preserve valuable natural areas, wildlife habitat, 

water quality and outdoor recreation for public benefit around the state, and;

WHEREAS; the Fox Cites region has benefited tremendously from KNSP, a vital 

funding component in the implementation of 170 land conservation and recreation 

projects totaling $18 million dollars in economic benefit which have expanded 

recreational opportunities and access to the Fox River Corridor's natural infrastructure 

contributing greatly to the quality-of-life enjoyed in the Fox Cities, and; 

WHEREAS; the City of Appleton has been awarded Stewardship funds in the recent 

past to support the Lawe Street Trestle improvement project which opened in the fall of 

2020 to significant public use and praise, and currently has scheduled a number of 

key Fox River crossing projects to complete the contiguous network of trails along the 

Hydrologic Heritage Trailway, driven by the City's Trails Master Plan which, in the 

absence of essential KNSP matching philanthropic funds, will be dramatically 

hampered and significantly delayed, and;

WHEREAS; demand for outdoor recreation opportunities continues to grow, especially 

in the current era of COVID which is seeing trail use increase one-hundredfold, with 

trail improvements consistently ranked as the most desired and needed amenity of 

Appleton residents, and these needs that can be meet with the KNSP's minimal 

burden on the taxpayer, roughly $20 annually which returns a maximum benefit to the 

community through land conservation, recreational infrastructure and economic growth, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton acknowledges and 

considers the Knowles- Nelson Stewardship Program a valuable tool to preserve and 

restore natural areas, wildlife habitat, and water quality while supporting the 

development of public nature-based outdoor recreation opportunities that promote 

economic development and enhance quality of life, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton supports the reauthorization of 

the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program for ten years and consideration of the 

proposal in Governor Evers budget request of $70 million per year, and 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton Clerk be directed to forward a 

copy of this resolution to members of the Senate Joint Finance Committee, State 

Representatives of the Fox Cities, Governor Evers and the Wisconsin Department of 

Natural Resources Secretary, 101 S. Webster Street, Madison, WI 53702. 

Attachments:

KNSP Fox Valley Investments

KNSP Fox Valley Investments – Loop the Little Lake

KNSP Fox Valley Investments – Ne.lson Family Herritage Crossing

Page 12City of Appleton



May 19, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Martin moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the meeting 

be adjourned at 8:08 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 13City of Appleton



" . . .  meeting community needs ... enhancing quality of life." 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Members of the Common Council 

Mayor Jacob A. Woo� 

June 1, 2021 

Confirmation of Board Reappointment 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

Jacob A. Woodford 

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-4799 

Phone: (920) 832-6400 

Email: Mayor@Appleton.org 

It is with pleasure that I present the following reappointment for your confirmation at the June 2 

Common Council meeting. 

�OARD OF REVIEW - Re�ppointment 

Linda Marx 1-yearTerm Term Expires April 2022 











0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500
03

/1
6/

20
03

/2
3/

20
03

/3
0/

20
04

/0
6/

20
04

/1
3/

20
04

/2
0/

20
04

/2
7/

20
05

/0
4/

20
05

/1
1/

20
05

/1
8/

20
05

/2
5/

20
06

/0
1/

20
06

/0
8/

20
06

/1
5/

20
06

/2
2/

20
06

/2
9/

20
07

/0
6/

20
07

/1
3/

20
07

/2
0/

20
07

/2
7/

20
08

/0
3/

20
08

/1
0/

20
08

/1
7/

20
08

/2
4/

20
08

/3
1/

20
09

/0
7/

20
09

/1
4/

20
09

/2
1/

20
09

/2
8/

20
10

/0
5/

20
10

/1
2/

20
10

/1
9/

20
10

/2
6/

20
11

/0
2/

20
11

/0
9/

20
11

/1
6/

20
11

/2
3/

20
11

/3
0/

20
12

/0
7/

20
12

/1
4/

20
12

/2
1/

20
12

/2
8/

20
01

/0
4/

21
01

/1
1/

21
01

/1
8/

21
01

/2
5/

21
02

/0
1/

21
02

/0
8/

21
02

/1
5/

21
02

/2
2/

21
03

/0
1/

21
03

/0
8/

21
03

/1
5/

21
03

/2
2/

21
03

/2
9/

21
04

/0
5/

21
04

/1
2/

21
04

/1
9/

21
04

/2
6/

21
05

/0
3/

21
05

/1
0/

21
05

/1
7/

21
05

/2
4/

21

Newly Reported COVID-19 Cases in Appleton 
by Week, with an Average per Week

New Cases Last 7 Days Weekly Average New Cases



43 + 18 = 61 (2 week case counts)

61 / 75,000 = .0000813 (Appleton population 75,000)

.0000813 x 100,000 = 81.3 (equals burden)

Low less than or equal to 10 per 100,000 people
Moderate greater than 10 but less than 50 per 100,000 people
Moderately High greater than 50 but less than 100 per 100,000 people
High is greater than 100 per 100,000 people
Very High is greater than 350 per 100,000 people
Critically High is greater than 1,000 per 100,000 people



Indicator Definition
Total number of cases per 100,000 
in the last two weeks (

Low

    ) Moderate
Moderately High

High
Very High

Critcally High
Percent change in the last two 
weeks (
   ), p-value from a test against 

Not changing (No 
Call)

Shrinking No Call Growing

Low Low Low Medium
Moderate Medium Medium High

Moderately High Medium High High

High High High High

Very High
Very 
High

Very 
High

Very High

Critically High
Critcally 
High

Critcally 
High

Critcally High

and 

Otherwise

Case status 
indicator(Composite 

of burden and 
trajectory)

Summary concern based on Burden 
and Trajectory classifications

Table 1. Two indicators being based on confirmed cases: Burden and Trajectory. A third indicator maps Burden and 
Trajectory indicators into one composite indicator.

Classes

Burden

1000 < B

                    ≤ 350
350 < B  ≤ 1000

Trajectory

Shrinking   and 

Growing



0

200

400

600

800

000

200
3/

23
/2

02
0

3/
30

/2
02

0

4/
6/

20
20

4/
13

/2
02

0

4/
20

/2
02

0

4/
27

/2
02

0

5/
4/

20
20

5/
11

/2
02

0

5/
18

/2
02

0

5/
25

/2
02

0

6/
1/

20
20

6/
8/

20
20

6/
15

/2
02

0

6/
22

/2
02

0

6/
29

/2
02

0

7/
6/

20
20

7/
13

/2
02

0

7/
20

/2
02

0

7/
27

/2
02

0

8/
3/

20
20

8/
10

/2
02

0

8/
17

/2
02

0

8/
24

/2
02

0

8/
31

/2
02

0

9/
7/

20
20

9/
14

/2
02

0

9/
21

/2
02

0

9/
28

/2
02

0

10
/5

/2
02

0

10
/1

2/
20

20

10
/1

9/
20

20

10
/2

6/
20

20

11
/2

/2
02

0

11
/9

/2
02

0

11
/1

6/
20

20

11
/2

3/
20

20

11
/3

0/
20

20

12
/7

/2
02

0

12
/1

4/
20

20

12
/2

1/
20

20

12
/2

8/
20

20

1/
4/

20
21

1/
11

/2
02

1

1/
18

/2
02

1

1/
25

/2
02

1

2/
1/

20
21

2/
8/

20
21

2/
15

/2
02

1

2/
22

/2
02

1

3/
1/

20
21

3/
8/

20
21

3/
15

/2
02

1

3/
22

/2
02

1

3/
29

/2
02

1

4/
5/

20
21

4/
12

/2
02

1

4/
19

/2
02

1

4/
26

/2
02

1

5/
3/

20
21

5/
10

/2
02

1

5/
17

/2
02

1

5/
24

/2
02

1

Two Week Total New COVID-19 Cases in Appleton, 
Rate per 100,000 Population, Risk Level Assessments per WDHS 

Low Moderate Moderately High High Very High Critically High



Total Vaccines Provided  32,984



VACCINATIONS  TO  DATE   (05/31/21)

FULLY VACCINATED AT LEAST ONE SINGLE DOSE

STATE 42.0% 47.9%

CALUMET 37.8% 42.8%

WINNEBAGO 39.9% 45.1%

OUTAGAMIE 40.8% 46.8%

APPLETON 43.4% 49.6%

APPLETON VACCINE ELIGIBLE 51.5% 58.9%



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
#4-21 

RE: Proposed Zone Change 
 

A public hearing will be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, Appleton, Wisconsin, on June 
2, 2021, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, to consider the following proposed 
zone change: 

 
Rezoning #4-21: A rezoning request has been initiated by the owner, U.S. Venture Inc., in the 
matter of amending Chapter Twenty-three (Zoning Ordinance) of the Municipal Code of the City 
of Appleton for the above-described real estate, which is currently zoned R-1B Single-Family 
District, R-3 Multi-Family District, and P-I Public Institutional District.  The owner proposes to 
rezone the property to CBD Central Business District (see attached map).  The CBD District is 
intended to provide a centrally located and readily accessible area that offers a wide variety of 
retail, service, financial, entertainment, governmental, and residential uses.  A broad range of 
uses is permitted to reflect downtown’s role as a commercial, cultural and government center.  
Development is intended to be intense with maximum lot coverage, increased building scale and 
height density and buildings placed close together.  Development is intended to be pedestrian-
oriented with a strong emphasis on a safe and attractive streetscape. 
 
Purpose of the Rezoning: The owner proposes to establish zoning that is uniform for all 15 subject lots 
and allows for future development. 
 
Legal Description: Tax Id #31-2-0159-00, #31-2-0160-00, #31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-
2-0164-00, #31-2-0165-00, #31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, #31-2-0168-00, #31-2-0169-00, #31-
2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-0172-00, #31-2-0173-00, and #31-2-0174-00. 
 
Property description for rezoning the U.S. Venture, Inc. properties, City of Appleton, Outagamie 
County, Wisconsin, being described as follows. 
 
All of Lots 1, 2, the east 16.2 feet of Lot 3 and all of Lots 5 thru 14 inclusive in block 12 of the 
Appleton Plat, all in Government Lot 2, Section 26, Town 21 North, Range 17 East, City of 
Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin.  Including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of 
South Morrison Street, East Lawrence Street, South Durkee Street, East Water Street, East 
Kimball Street, and South Oak Street. 
record. 
 
May 13, 2021 
 
RUN: May 18, 2021    KAMI LYNCH 
 May 25, 2021    City Clerk 



 
NOTICE OF PROPOSED STREET VACATION 

 
(Pursuant to Section 66.1003, Wisconsin Statutes-2013-2014) 

 
Notice is hereby given that a written resolution has been filed with the Common Council of the City of 

Appleton for the discontinuance of: 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE VACATED: 
A part of Douglas Street, being located in the Government Lot Three (3), Fractional Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section 
Thirty-Four (34), Township Twenty-One (21) North, Range Seventeen (17) East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin, containing 1,174 Sq. Ft. of land and being further described as follows: 
Commencing at the West Quarter corner of said Section 34: 
Thence South 89°45’50” East 1392.02 feet coincident with the North line of the Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 34; 
Thence South 00°13'29" East 989.76 feet to the Southeast corner of Prospect Avenue and Douglas Street and being the 
Point of Beginning; 
Thence continue South 00°13'29" East 101.34 feet coincident with the East line of Douglas Street; 
Thence North 89°44'29" West 0.59 feet; 
Thence Northwesterly 50.90 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a radius of 111.00 feet and the chord of which 
bears North 23°07'34" West 50.46 feet; 
Thence North 36°15'46" West 12.20 feet; 
Thence Northeasterly 52.82 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 189.14 feet and the chord of which 
bears North 31°11'04" East 52.65 feet to the point of beginning. 
And 
A part of Prospect Avenue, being located in Government Lot Three (3) and Government Lot Four (4), Fractional 
Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-Four (34), Township Twenty-One (21) North, Range Seventeen (17) East, 
City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 1,468 Sq. Ft. of land and being further described as follows:   
Commencing at the West Quarter corner of said Section 34: 
Thence South 89°45’50” East 1332.02 feet coincident with the North line of the Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 34; 
Thence South 00°13'29" East 1109.23 feet to the Southwest corner of Prospect Avenue and Douglas Street and also being 
the Northeast corner of Lot 20, Block 1, Rivercrest Subdivision and being the Point of Beginning; 
Thence North 89°50’32” West 120.00 feet coincident with the North line of Lot 20 of said Block 1 to the Northwest 
corner thereof and also being coincident with the South line of Prospect Avenue; 
Thence North 00°13'29" West 0.63 feet; 
Thence North 86°23'57" East 13.47 feet; 
Thence Northeasterly 99.73 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 197.00 feet and the chord of which 
bears North 71°53'48" East 98.67 feet; 
Thence South 36°15'46" East 5.27 feet; 
Thence Southeasterly 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00 feet and the chord of which 
bears South 18°54'42" East 29.82 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
A map is available in the City Clerk’s office upon request. 
 
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 
A portion of West Prospect Avenue and a portion of South Douglas Street 
 
Notice is further given that a hearing of said resolution will be held at a regular meeting of the Common 
Council to be held at 7:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as can be heard, on Wednesday, June 2nd, 2021, in the 
Council Chambers at the City Hall in said City of Appleton. 
 

By Order of the Common Council. 
 
April 22, 2021 

KAMI LYNCH 
City Clerk 

RUN:  April 24, 2021 



 May 1, 2021 
 May 8, 2021 
 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WILL BE MADE 
UPON REQUEST AND IF FEASIBLE.  



 

        FINAL RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the public interest requires that a 
part of West Prospect Avenue and a part of South 
Douglas Street, that have not previously been vacated, 
be vacated and discontinued; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice was given when and where 

the resolution would be acted on, as required by law; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, hearing was had on said Resolution 

on the 2nd day of June, 2021, at City Hall, in and for the 
City of Appleton, Wisconsin. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council 

of the City of Appleton, Wisconsin, hereby determines 
that the public interest requires that: 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
A part of Douglas Street, being located in the 
Government Lot Three (3), Fractional Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-Four 
(34), Township Twenty-One (21) North, Range Seventeen (17) East, City of Appleton, 
Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 1,174 Sq. Ft. of land and being further 
described as follows:   
Commencing at the West Quarter corner of said Section 34: 
Thence South 89°45’50”East 1392.02 feet coincident with the North line of the 
Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 34; 
Thence South 00°13'29" East 989.76 feet to the Southeast corner of Prospect Avenue and 
Douglas Street and being the Point of Beginning; 
Thence continue South 00°13'29" East 101.34 feet coincident with the East line of 
Douglas Street; 
Thence North 89°44'29" West 0.59 feet; 
Thence Northwesterly 50.90 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a radius of 
111.00 feet and the chord of which bears North 23°07'34" West 50.46 feet; 
Thence North 36°15'46" West 12.20 feet; 
Thence Northeasterly 52.82 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 
189.14 feet and the chord of which bears North 31°11'04" East 52.65 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 
And 
 
A part of Prospect Avenue, being located in Government Lot Three (3) and Government 
Lot Four (4),  Fractional Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-Four (34), 
Township Twenty-One (21) North, Range Seventeen (17) East, City of Appleton, 
Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 1,468 Sq. Ft. of land and being further 
described as follows:   
Commencing at the West Quarter corner of said Section 34: 
Thence South 89°45’50”East 1332.02 feet coincident with the North line of the 
Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 34; 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Record and return to: 
     City of Appleton – City Attorney’s Office 
     100 North Appleton Street 
     Appleton, WI    54911-4799 
 

Tax Key Nos.: 31-3-1617-00 and 31-3-1523-00 
 

  



Thence South 00°13'29" East 1109.23 feet to the Southwest corner of Prospect Avenue 
and Douglas Street and  also being the Northeast corner of Lot 20, Block 1, Rivercrest 
Subdivision and being the Point of Beginning; 
Thence North 89°50’32”West 120.00 feet coincident with the North line of Lot 20 of said 
Block 1 to the Northwest corner thereof and also being coincident with the South line of 
Prospect Avenue; 
Thence North 00°13'29" West 0.63 feet; 
Thence North 86°23'57" East 13.47 feet; 
Thence Northeasterly 99.73 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 
197.00 feet and the chord of which bears North 71°53'48" East 98.67 feet; 
Thence South 36°15'46" East 5.27 feet; 
Thence Southeasterly 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
50.00 feet and the chord of which bears South 18°54'42" East 29.82 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 
See also attached Exhibit “A” for illustration. 
 
EASEMENTS 
The City of Appleton their heirs, successors and or assigns (Grantee) hereby retain an 
easement for any and all existing utilities and also any future utilities deemed necessary 
or desirable by Grantee within the vacated right of way, including but not limited to, 
storm sewer, drainage, sanitary sewer, watermain, gas, electric, cable and fiber- optic 
within the entire length and width of the above described right of way.   
It is further agreed that this easement shall be a permanent easement. 
It is further agreed that Grantee shall have the right to install, regrade, replace, relocate, 
operate, maintain, resize and repair any and all of these utilities and their associated 
appurtenances.  It is further agreed that after installing, regrading, replacing, relocating, 
operating, maintaining, resizing or repairing of these utilities and their associated 
appurtenances Grantee shall restore unimproved surfaces such as grass, gravel and dirt on 
said property, as closely as possible, to the condition previously existing.  Grantee shall 
not be required to restore or compensate for any improvements or improved surfaces such 
as, but not limited to, curb and gutter, hard pavements, trees, shrubs and landscaping, 
disturbed as a result of the maintenance activities described herein.  Buildings or any 
other type of permanent structure shall not be placed over Grantees’ facilities or in, upon 
or over said easement area.  This easement includes the right to operate any and all 
equipment deemed necessary by Grantee to perform said activities. Grantee agrees that it 
shall give timely notice to the Grantor of routine maintenance work.   

 
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 

 
A part of West Prospect Avenue and a part of South Douglas Street 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk of the City of Appleton be authorized and 

directed to give notice required by §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that according to §66.1005, Wisconsin Statutes, upon vacation and 

discontinuance of said portion of West Prospect Avenue and said portion of South Douglas Street, 
title to the above-described area shall belong to the adjoining property owners and shall acquire an 
ownership interest in the entire area being vacated (as deemed necessary). 

 
City of Appleton 



 

By: _______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor         Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
Date: ______________________________   
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
  : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 
 
 The foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me this _____ day of June, 2021 by 
Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor and Kami Lynch, City Clerk. 
 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jamie L. Griesbach 
   Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
   My commission expires 11/11/2021 
 
This instrument was drafted by:  
City Attorney Christopher R. Behrens 
City Law A21‐0230 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 























06/30/2022









ADDITIONAL 2021-2022 RENEWALS 

        CLASS “A” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & “CLASS A” LIQUOR (CIDER 

ONLY) LICENSE 

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Quinto Sol LLC   Quinto Sol Supermarket  2311 W College Ave 

Hector Mosqueda, Agent, 1009 E Kramer Ln Appleton WI  54915 

 

CLASS “A” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & “CLASS A” LIQUOR LICENSE 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Appleton Liquor LLC   Appleton Liquor   2727 N Meade St 

Heidi Guta, Agent, 1325 E Overland Rd Appleton WI 54911 

 

Flanagan’s Stop & Shop, Inc.  Flanagan’s Stop & Shop  522 W College Ave 

Patrick James Flanagan, Agent, N1820 North Rd Greenville WI 54942 

 

Ultimate Mart LLC   Pick ‘N Save #8123   2700 N Ballard Rd 

Ken A Voss, Agent, 2936 Blue Moon Dr Green Bay WI 54311  

 

Ultimate Mart LLC   Pick ‘N Save #8187   511 W Calumet St 

Ruth K Ackerman, Agent, 1114 Melrose Ct #4 Neenah WI 54956 

 

CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE LICENSE 

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Fronteras, LLC   Fronteras Restaurant   2311 W College Ave 

Eric Mosqueda Lopez, Agent, 1009 E Kramer Ln Appleton WI  54915 

 

Mai’s Deli    Mai’s Deli    104 S Memorial Dr 

Fong Lee, Agent, 716 W 8th St Kaukauna WI 54130 

 

 

CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE LICENSE 

AND “CLASS C” WINE LICENSE 

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Green Gecko Enterprises LLC Green Gecko Grocer & Deli  222 E College Ave 

Robert C Wall, Agent,1020 N Durkee St Appleton WI 54911 

 

Tempest Coffee Collective LLC Tempest Coffee Collective     181 S Riverheath Way, Ste 1100 

Tyler A. Lonadier, Agent, 1133 W Woodstone Dr Appleton WI 54914 

 

 

 

 



CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE  

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Antojitos Mexicanos LLC  Antojitos Mexicanos   204 E College Ave 

Fernando Almanza, Agent, 580 Cornrow Ln Combined Locks WI 54113 

 

DCMX LLC    Gingerootz    2920 N Ballard Rd Ste A 

Mylee Xiong, Agent, W2374 Holly Ln Appleton WI 54915 

 

Driftwood Special Servicing LLC Fox Cities Exhibition Center  355 W Lawrence St 

Linda M. Garvey, Agent, 105 Alexander Dr Neenah WI 54956 

 

Mr. Taco Authentic Mexican Cuisine Corp     Mr. Taco   106 S State St 

Jennifer Almeida Sandoval, Agent, N197 Eastowne Ln Appleton WI 54915 

 

Driftwood Special Servicing LLC Red Lion Paper Valley Hotel Banquet Svcs333 W College Ave 

Linda M. Garvey, Agent, 105 Alexander Dr Neenah WI 54956   

 

Driftwood Special Servicing LLCRed Lion Paper Valley Hotel Blaze 333 W College Ave 

Linda M. Garvey, Agent, 105 Alexander Dr Neenah WI 54956  

 

Driftwood Special Servicing LLCRed Lion Paper Valley Hotel Clubhouse 333 W College Ave 

Linda M. Garvey, Agent, 105 Alexander Dr Neenah WI 54956   

 

Driftwood Special Servicing LLCRed Lion Paper Valley Hotel, Lombardi Bar 333 W College Ave 

Linda M. Garvey, Agent, 105 Alexander Dr Neenah WI 54956 

 

OM Investments, LLC  Sai Ram Indian Cuisine  253 W Northland Ave 

Sivakumar Rajarathinam, Agent, 1237 Symphony Blvd Neenah WI 54956 

 

Lawrence University of Wisconsin Viking Room    615 E College Ave 

Jonathan E Meyer, Agent, 304 W North Ave Little Chute WI 54140  

 

CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & RESERVE “CLASS B” LIQUOR 

LICENSE 

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Appleton Yacht Club   Appleton Yacht Club   1200 S Lutz Dr 

Andrew T. Potter, Agent, 3146 N Lawe St Appleton WI 54911 

 

Appleton Hotel Ventures LLC Cambria Suites   3940 N Gateway Dr 

Troy R Graverson, Agent, W2558 Ridgefield Ct Appleton WI 54915 

 

C-Vine Lounge LLC   C-Vine Lounge   531 W College Ave 

Conrado Lopez Mendez, Agent, 1789 Sanctuary Ct #63 Appleton WI 54914 

 



Fox River Boat Holding Co, LLC River Tyme Bistro   425 W Water St #100 

Candice Mortara, Agent, 1301 N Briarcliff Dr, Appleton WI 54915 











 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  U.S. Venture, Inc.  c/o Bob Huss 

 

Address/Parcel:  Generally located south of Lawrence Street, west of Durkee Street, north of Water 

Street, and east of Morrison Street consisting of 15 parcels (Tax Id #31-2-0159-00, #31-2-0160-00, #31-2-

0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-2-0164-00, #31-2-0165-00, #31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, #31-2-0168-00, 

#31-2-0169-00, #31-2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-0172-00, #31-2-0173-00, and #31-2-0174-00). 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant proposes to rezone the subject parcels from R-1B Single-Family 

District, R-3 Multi-Family District, and P-I Public Institutional District to CBD Central Business District.  

The request is being made to establish zoning that is uniform for all 15 subject lots and allows for future 

development. 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

The owner/applicant has acquired 16 parcels in the area south of Lawrence Street and east of Morrison 

Street.  Some buildings have already been demolished in the subject area, and additional demolition 

permits have been issued recently.  In April 2021, the owner/applicant submitted a Certified Survey Map 

(CSM) to combine the 16 parcels into one lot.  One of those parcels (#31-2-0162-00) is already zoned 

CBD Central Business District, so it is not included in this rezoning request.  Per Section 23-40(b) of the 

Municipal Code, there shall not be more than one zoning district on any parcel of land.  Therefore, 

uniform zoning is needed before the commonly-owned parcels can be combined. 

 

Two related items are also being presented at this May 12, 2021 Plan Commission meeting.  One is a 

request to vacate and discontinue portions of Oak Street and Kimball Street right-of-way.  The other is a 

proposed dedication of public right-of-way to widen Lawrence Street by 20 feet.  Both items are 

incorporated in the CSM referenced above.  CSMs are reviewed and administratively approved by City 

staff; however, CSM approval could only occur after Common Council approval of the items noted 

above. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Site Conditions:  The subject parcels total approximately 2.501 acres in size and are located in 

between Lawrence Street, Durkee Street, Water Street, and Morrison Street.  Water Street is classified as 

a collector street on the City’s Arterial/Collector Plan, and the other surrounding streets are classified as 

local streets.  Currently, the site includes several vacant parcels, as some former residences have already  

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Informal Hearing Meeting Date:  May 12, 2021 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  June 2, 2021 (Public 

Hearing on Rezoning) 

Item:  Rezoning #4-21 – South Oak Street and East Kimball Street 

Case Manager:  David Kress, Principal Planner 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Rezoning #4-21 

May 12, 2021 

Page 2 

 

been demolished.  Additional demolition permits have been issued, and it is anticipated that all existing 

buildings will be demolished. 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses:  

 

North:  CBD Central Business District.  The YMCA of the Fox Cities facility is located north of the 

subject property. 

 

South:  PD/R-3 Planned Development Multi-Family District and P-I Public Institutional District.  The 

adjacent land uses to the south are currently a mix of multi-family residential and institutional uses. 

 

East:  P-I Public Institutional District.  The Lawrence University campus is located east of the subject 

property. 

 

West:  CBD Central Business District.  The adjacent land uses to the west are currently institutional 

(Mosaic Family Health) and vacant land. 

 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The purpose of the CBD Central Business District is to provide a 

centrally located and readily accessible area that offers a wide variety of retail, service, financial, 

entertainment, governmental and residential uses.  A broad range of uses is permitted to reflect 

downtown’s role as a commercial, cultural and government center.  Development is intended to be intense 

with maximum lot coverage, increased building scale and height density and buildings placed close 

together.  Development is intended to be pedestrian-oriented with a strong emphasis on a safe and 

attractive streetscape.  Per Section 23-114(i) of the Municipal Code, the development standards for the 

CBD District are listed below: 

 

1) Minimum lot area:  2,400 square feet. 

2) Maximum lot coverage:  100%. 

3) Minimum lot width:  20 feet. 

4) Minimum front yard:  None. 

5) Minimum rear yard: 
a. None. 

b. 10 feet when abutting a residentially-zoned district. 

6) Minimum side yard: 
a. None. 

b. 10 feet when abutting a residentially-zoned district. 

7) Maximum building height:  200 feet. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to establish uniform zoning, 

allow for combining of lots via CSM, and accommodate future development.  The existing parcels appear 

to satisfy the development standards for the CBD Central Business District listed above.  Based on initial 

CSM review, the proposed lot combination would also meet applicable lot area and lot width 

development standards for the CBD District.  If the rezoning request is approved, any future development  



Rezoning #4-21 

May 12, 2021 

Page 3 

 

would need to conform to the CBD District zoning regulations and other applicable sections of the Zoning 

Ordinance.  Ultimately, any new building would require Site Plan review and approval, pursuant to 

Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior to the issuance of a building permit by the Inspections 

Division. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

identifies this area with a future Mixed Use designation.  The proposed CBD Central Business District 

rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.6 Economic Development: 

Create a vibrant environment that is conducive to attracting and retaining talented people. 

Policy 9.6.2  Encourage the creation of vibrant mixed-use urban areas in the downtown and along 

the Fox River that are both walkable and bicycle-friendly. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.2 Land Use: 

Encourage redevelopment to meet the demand for a significant share of future growth, and to enhance the 

quality of existing neighborhoods. 

 

Chapter 14 Downtown Plan,  Initiative 4 Downtown Development and Business Retention: 

Strategy 4.7 – Maintain an environment favorable to larger employers in the downtown. 

 

Chapter 14 Downtown Plan,  Initiative 4 Downtown Development and Business Retention: 

Strategy 4.8 – Support private sector efforts to redevelop and invest in downtown. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 



Rezoning #4-21 

May 12, 2021 

Page 4 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  The rezoning request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

goals and objectives stated above and the Future Land Use Map, which identifies this area for 

future mixed uses. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map, is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the proposed rezoning.  Some 

recommended transportation-related improvements near the subject property are identified in 

the Downtown Mobility Study, which was approved by Common Council on August 17, 2016. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  All properties located north and 

west of the subject area are already zoned CBD Central Business District.  Properties to the 

east and south of the subject area primarily consist of Lawrence University’s campus.  

Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is unlikely to create adverse impacts in the 

surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Section 23-

65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the April 20, 2021 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Section 23-

65(d)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #4-21 to rezone the subject parcels 

generally located south of Lawrence Street and east of Morrison Street (Tax Id #31-2-0159-00, #31-2-

0160-00, #31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-2-0164-00, #31-2-0165-00, #31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, 

#31-2-0168-00, #31-2-0169-00, #31-2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-0172-00, #31-2-0173-00, and #31-

2-0174-00) from R-1B Single-Family District, R-3 Multi-Family District, and P-I Public Institutional 

District to CBD Central Business District, including to the centerline of the adjacent South Morrison  



Rezoning #4-21 

May 12, 2021 

Page 5 

 

Street, East Lawrence Street, South Durkee Street, East Water Street, East Kimball Street, and South Oak 

Street right-of-way, as shown on the attached map, BE APPROVED. 



2-0
17

8

2-0181-2

2-0792-1

2-0052

2-0
00

5

2-0
00

4
2-0

00
3

2-0
00

2

2-0
03

1

2-0
02

7
2-0

02
6

2-0
02

5
2-0

02
3 2-0

01
7

2-0
01

9
2-0

02
0

2-0
02

1
2-0

02
2

2-0
05

1
2-0

05
1-1

2-0
05

0
2-0

04
9

2-0
04

8
2-0

04
7

2-0
04

6

2-0
04

4
2-0

04
3

2-0
04

2
2-0

04
1

2-0
04

0
2-0

03
9

2-0
03

8

2-0
18

3

2-01842-0179

2-0182

2-0181-3

2-0032-1

2-0156

2-0144 2-0
15

9 2-0160

2-0
17

3

2-0
17

4

2-0
17

2

2-0
17

1

2-0
16

8

2-0
16

9

2-0167

2-0163
2-01652-0

164
2-0

16
2

2-0
16

12-0152

2-0
07

0

2-0282-15

2-0
16

6

2-0182-1

2-0792

2-0181

2-0181-1

0-0
04

4-1
0-0

04
4

2-0
17

0

2-0175

2-0032

405

12
0

12
1

118

218

111
214

101
111

121

221

21
1

21
2

22
9

301

235

30
0

31
4

21
0-1

2

20
0

22
1.5

22
5.5

23
3

22
1

22
5

11
0

10
1-0

5

100

30
8

30
4232218 222122

100

20
9

327

20113
5

13
3

12
9

12
7

12
5

12
3

12
1

11
7

11
5

11
9

11
3

10
1

10
3

10
7

10
9 11
1

30
3

30
5

31
3

31
5

20
4

20
8

20
6

21
6

31
1

21
4 224 230

21
3

21
5

21
7

21
9

22
3

22
5

22
7

22
9

23
1

23
3

CBD
S M

OR
RI

SO
N 

ST
S M

OR
RI

SO
N 

ST

E KIMBALL ST

E COLLEGE AV

S D
UR

KE
E S

T

S OLDE

ONEIDA ST

E LAWRENCE ST
E LAWRENCE ST

S O
NE

ID
A S

T

ROCKY BLEIER RUN

W WATER ST

S A
LL

EN
 ST

SOLDIERS SQUARE

E WATER ST
P-I

P-I

P-I

PD/R-3

R-1B

R-1B

R-3

M-2

P-I

CBD

S L
AW

E 
ST

E COLLEGE AV

S M
EM

OR
IA

L D
R

W COLLEGE AV

W PACKARD ST

N 
LA

WE
 S

T

W PROSPECT A
V

N 
DR

EW
 S

T

S ONEIDA ST

W FRANKLIN ST

W SIXTH ST

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

S OLDE ONEIDA ST

W LAWRENCE ST N 
MO

RR
ISO

N 
ST

S A
PP

LE
TO

N 
ST

N 
ME

AD
E 

ST South Oak Street & East Kimball Street
Rezoning

R-1B Single-Family District, 
R-3 Multi-Family District, and

P-I Public Institutional District to 
CBD Central Business District

Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
5-12-21

0 100 20050
Feet



E WATER ST

ALLEY

S D
UR

KE
E S

T

E LAWRENCE ST

E KIMBALL ST

S O
AK

 ST

S M
OR

RI
SO

N 
ST

S OLDE ONEIDA ST

SOLDIERS SQUARE
ALLEYS M

OR
RI

SO
N 

ST South Oak Street & East Kimball Street
Rezoning

R-1B Single-Family District,
R-3 Multi-Family District, and 

P-I Public Institutional District to 
CBD Central Business District

Aerial Map

0 500250
Feet

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
5-12-2021



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
Tax Id #31-2-0159-00, #31-2-0160-00, #31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-2-0164-00, #31-2-0165-00, 
#31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, #31-2-0168-00, #31-2-0169-00, #31-2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-
0172-00, #31-2-0173-00, and #31-2-0174-00. 
 
Property description for rezoning the U.S. Venture, Inc. properties, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin, being described as follows. 
 
All of Lots 1, 2, the east 16.2 feet of Lot 3 and all of Lots 5 thru 14 inclusive in block 12 of the Appleton 
Plat, all in Government Lot 2, Section 26, Town 21 North, Range 17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie 
County, Wisconsin.  Including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of South Morrison Street, East 
Lawrence Street, South Durkee Street, East Water Street, East Kimball Street, and South Oak Street. 



McMAHON
1445 McMAHON DRIVE  NEENAH, WI 54956

Mailing: P.O.BOX 1025  NEENAH, WI 54957-1025

Tel: (920) 751-4200    Fax: (920) 751-4284

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. LAWRENCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. DURKEE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. WATER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°58'06"E        161.45''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°05'47"E        259.41''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°50'15"W        162.03''

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°01'23"E        262.61''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°58'06"W        161.04''

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°10'06"W        318.14''

AutoCAD SHX Text
N71°36'33"E        374.75''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°01'23"W        141.56''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°50'15"W        194.10''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°05'47"E        290.78''

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. OAK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. MORRISON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 312016100 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016300 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016500 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016400 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016700 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016600 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312015900 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016000 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312017400 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312017300 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312017200 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312017100 U.S. VENTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
312017000 U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016900 U.S. VENTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
312016800 U.S. VENTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
YMCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S. VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KIMBALL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
Page

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Book

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXHIBIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H0034  09-21-00256

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"= 80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
April, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE - FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR REZONING THE U.S. VENTURE, INC. PROPERTIES, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS. ALL OF LOTS 1, 2, THE EAST 16.2 FEET OF LOT 3 AND ALL OF LOTS 5 THRU 14 INCLUSIVE IN BLOCK 12 OF THE APPLETON PLAT INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE-HALF (1/2) RIGHT-OF-WAY OF S. MORRISON STREET, E. LAWRENCE STREET, S. DURKEE STREET, E. WATER STREET, E. KIMBALL STREET, AND S. OAK STREET, ALL IN GOVERNMENT LOT 2, SECTION 26 TOWN 21 NORTH, RANGE 16 EAST CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. CONTAINING MORE OR LESS 163,977 SQUARE FEET (3.76 ACRES).

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE PUBLISHED OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, COORDINATE SYSTEM.



 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  North Appleton Properties, LLC – Gregory Gauerke – Member 

 

Consulting Engineering Firm:  Davel Engineering & Environmental, Inc. (James R. Sehloff, P.L.S.) 

 

Location:  The subject property is located on the west side of French Road at a distance of approximately 

1,400 feet north of the intersection of French Road and Broadway Drive.  

Tax Id Number:  City Parcel #31-1-9210-14 (formerly Town of Freedom Parcel #090-0855-00)   

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is proposing to subdivide the subject property into seven (7) single-

family residential lots.  (Phase 2 of Broadway Hills Estates) 

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The Preliminary Plat for 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates was approved by the Plan Commission on 

March 9, 2021 and by the Common Council on April 7, 2021.  The Common Council granted relief to the 

following regulation: 1) The two (2) length to one (1) width ratio, per Section 17-26(g) of the Municipal 

Code for Lots 23 and 24.  Proposed Lots 23 and 24 exceed the 2 depth to 1 width ratio (Lot 23 = 2.4 to 1 

and Lot 24 = 4.2 to 1).   

 

The subject property was rezoned from Temporary AG Agricultural District to R-1B Single-family 

District per Rezoning #3-21 which was approved by the Common Council on April 7, 2021. 

 

The subject property was included in the 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates Annexation which was 

officially annexed to the City on March 9, 2021.  

 

The Final Plat for Broadway Hills Estates (Phase 1) was approved by the Plan Commission on August 25, 

2020 and by the Common Council on September 2, 2020.  Phase 1 consisted of 20 single-family 

residentials lots with an average size of 1.58 acres and 2 outlots for stormwater ponds.  

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 26, 2021 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  June 2, 2021 

 

Item:  Final Plat – 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates 

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp 

 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Final Plat – 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates 

May 26, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Conditions:  The subject property is agricultural land with a building that is approximately 

3,200 square feet in area.  At the preliminary plat stage, staff indicated the existing building located on 

proposed Lot 24 will remain on site. Based upon information provided by the property owner (developer), 

building permit #2020-116 was issued on December 14, 2020 by Town of Freedom Building Inspector to 

allow this building to be placed at this location.  Buildings lawfully existing at the time of annexation to 

the City may remain at their current location, although the use, size, and/or location does not conform to 

the provisions of the Municipal Code.  As a result, this existing building (approximate size: 40' x 80' 

(3,200 square feet in area) is deemed to be a legal, nonconforming building due to its size and agricultural 

storage use of farming equipment and bales of hay per building permit #2020-116. The applicable 

provisions of Section 23-42 Nonconforming buildings, structures, uses and lots of the Municipal Code 

apply to this building.   Prior to the issuance of building permit for a residential dwelling on Lot 24, the 

Inspections Division will ensure all applicable Municipal Code regulations are satisfied as it relates to 

location standards between a proposed residential dwelling and this existing building.   

 

Comparison Between Final Plat and Preliminary Plat:  The Final Plat is consistent with the 

Preliminary Plat layout in terms of the shape, size, and location of the lots.   

 

Broadway Hills Estates Concept Plan:  The lot and road layout shown on the Final Plat is generally 

consistent with Broadway Hills Estates Concept Master Plan dated April 21, 2020 which is on file with 

the City.  

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  Lot development standards (Section 23-93 R-1B Single-family 

District of the Municipal Code) are as follows: 

 

 Minimum lot area:  Six thousand (6,000) square feet. 

 

o The proposed lots range in size from 47,625 square feet (1.09 acres) to 354,635 square 

feet (8.14 acres).  The average lot size for Lots 21-23 and 25-27 is 52,000 square feet (1.19 

acres) with Lot 24 being the largest at 354,635 square feet (8.14 acres). All proposed lots 

satisfy this minimum requirement.  

 

o Phase 1 of the Broadway Hills Estates Development located to the south consisted of 20 

single-family residentials lots with an average size of 1.58 acres.  

 

 Minimum lot width:  Fifty (50) feet. 

 

o The lot width dimension for the proposed lots range from 80 feet to 217 feet wide. All 

proposed lots satisfy this minimum requirement. 

 

 

 

 



Final Plat – 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates 

May 26, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 

 Minimum front, side, and rear yard setbacks (principal uses):  Twenty (20) foot front yard 

[twenty-five (25) foot minimum on arterial street (French Road)], Six (6) foot side yard, and 

Twenty-five (25) foot rear yard. 

 

o Required setbacks for buildings and structures will be reviewed through the building 

permit review process. 

 

 Maximum building height:  Thirty-five (35) feet. 

 

o This will be reviewed through the building permit review process. 

 

 Maximum lot coverage:  Fifty percent (50%). 

 

o This will be reviewed through the building permit review process. 

 

Compliance with the Appleton Subdivision Regulations:   

 

 On April 7, 2021, the Common Council granted relief at the Preliminary Plat approval stage for 

the following regulation: 1) The two (2) length to one (1) width ratio, per Section 17-26(g) of the 

Municipal Code for Lots 23 and 24. 

 

 Fritz Court is 500 feet in length, which satisfies Section 17-25(g) of the Subdivision Ordinance.  

 

Access and Traffic:  Vehicular access to the subject lots is provided by North French Road, which 

connects to proposed Fritz Court.  

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses: 

 

North:  Town of Freedom.  The adjacent land use to the north is currently residential and agricultural land. 

 

South: City of Appleton - R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently 

being developed as single-family residential (Broadway Hills Estates). 

 

East:  Town of Freedom.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently a mix of single-family 

residential and agricultural uses.  

 

West:  City of Appleton - AG Agricultural District.  City of Appleton sanitary sewer and water easement 

parcel. 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Plan Map 

identifies the subject area as future One/Two–Family residential.  This proposal is consistent with the 

following goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  

 



Final Plat – 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates 

May 26, 2021 

Page 4 

 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

OBJECTIVE 5.3 Housing and Neighborhoods: 

Provide a range of housing options that meet the needs and appeal to all segments of the community and 

allows residents to age in place. 

Policy 5.3.3  Plan for a supply of developable land suitable for residential development. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use:  

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

 

Parks and Open Space:  Section 17-29 of the Municipal Code requires parkland dedication or fee in lieu 

of dedication for residential subdivisions.  Since no parkland will be dedicated on the subject property, 

park fees will be due prior to the City signing the Final Plat.  For lots zoned R-1B Single-Family District, 

park fees are $300 per lot for a total of $2,100. 
 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the May 4, 2021 TRG Agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. The Final Plat was filed with the City 

Clerk on May 11, 2021. 

Review and Decision by Plan Commission:  The Plan Commission shall, within 30 days of the date of 

the filing of Final Plat with the City Clerk, recommend approval, conditional approval or denial of the plat 

to the Common Council, unless time is extended by agreement in writing between the City and Owner. 

 

Review and Decision by Common Council:  The Common Council shall, after receipt of the Plan 

Commission recommendation and within 60 days of the date of the filing of Final Plat with the City 

Clerk, approve, approve with conditions or deny the plat, unless time is extended by agreement in writing 

between the City and Owner. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based upon the above analysis, the 1st Addition to Broadway Hill Estates Final Plat, as 

shown on the attached maps, BE APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. A Development Agreement is required between the City and applicant that identifies the duties 

and responsibilities with respect to development of the subject land. 

 

2. All requirements from the City of Appleton Department of Public Works, Engineering Division 

shall be met to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to the City affixing signatures on the 

Final Plat. 

 



Final Plat – 1st Addition to Broadway Hills Estates 

May 26, 2021 

Page 5 

 

 

3. The following street within the Final Plat is to be classified as follows: 

 

a. Fritz Court:  Local Street 

 

4. Show and label a 50-foot Wetland Protective Area Setback associated with the wetland at the rear 

of Lot 24.  

5. Prior to City signatures being affixed to the Final Plat, park fees shall be paid to the City of 

Appleton Finance Department pursuant to Section 17-29 of the Municipal Code.  For lots zoned 

R-1B Single-Family District, park fees are $300 per lot for a total of $2,100.  

6. The Final Plat shall be recorded within 12 months from the approval date of the last approving 

authority and within 36 months from the approval date of the first approving authority.  Failure to 

do so requires the subdivider to recommence the entire procedure for Final Plat approval. 

 



1-9
21

0-2

1-9210-10

1-9210-24

1-9210-25

1-9210-26

1-9210-27

1-9210-28 1-9210-29 1-9210-41

1-9210-301-9210-31

1-9210-32

1-9210-33

1-9210-14

64
86

6543 6555 6567

6550 6562

63
77

64
77

65
01

651
9

653
1

652
0

FRITZ CT

N SNOWDRIFT DR

FR
EN

CH
 R

D

R-1B

R-1BC-2

AG

AG
CTY TK E

FR
EN

CH
 R

D
E BROADWAY DR

APPLE HILL BLVD

Final Plat
First Addition to Broadway Hills Estates

Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
5-26-2021

± 0 100 20050 Feet



1-9
21

0-2

1-9210-10

1-9210-24

1-9210-25

1-9210-26

1-9210-27

1-9210-28 1-9210-29 1-9210-41

1-9210-301-9210-31

1-9210-32

1-9210-33

1-9210-34

1-9210-39

1-9210-14

64
44

64
45

64
86

6543 6555 6567

6550 6562

63
77

64
77

65
01

651
9

653
1

652
0

FRITZ CT

N SNOWDRIFT DR

FR
EN

CH
 R

D

E APPLE CREEK RD Final Plat
First Addition to Broadway Hills Estates

Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
5-26-2021

± 0 100 20050 Feet



24
354,635 SF

8.1413 ac

S 89°47'58" E    1261.64'

N 89°51'17" W    1262.37'

N
 0

2°
03

'4
7"

 E
   

 5
75

.4
6'

S 
01

°5
9'

40
" W

   
 5

74
.2

2'

21
47,625 SF

1.0933 ac

22
52,090 SF

1.1958 ac

23
52,567 SF

1.2068 ac

27
59,408 SF

1.3638 ac

25
49,525 SF

1.1369 ac

26
50,789 SF

1.1660 ac

N
 0

2°
03

'4
7"

 E
   

  2
73

.7
2'

200.00'

N
 0

2°
03

'4
7"

 E
   

  2
50

.1
3'

200.00'

N 42°15'48" W
     324.16'

325.00'496.62'

S 46
°25

'18
" W

    
 37

0.8
4'

464.03'

S 
02

°0
3'

47
" W

   
  2

45
.0

0'

340.01'

S 89°47'58" E
 99.93' C4

C3

S 
02

°0
3'

47
" W

   
  2

43
.3

5'

199.99'

C2
N 88°00'19" W

 100.00'

N
 0

1°
59

'4
1"

 E
   

  2
10

.2
6'

218.32'

40.02'

40.02'

Fritz Court

30
'

CL

30
'

40'

Dedicated to the Public Fr
en

ch
 R

oa
d

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic

12' Utility Easement

10' Drainage Easement

30
' S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

 &
 W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Ea

se
m

en
t

12' Utility Easement

12
' U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t
20

' D
ra

in
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t

12
' U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t

20' Drainage Easement

C6

C7

C
8

C9

2.13'
97.80' C11

C12

C13
S 88°00'19" E

 100.00'

N
 0

1°
59

'4
1"

 E
   

  3
04

.0
0'

1222.35'

C10

C
5

S 89°47'58" E
 99.93'

C1

1221.62'
33.02'

7.00'

20' Drainage Easement 25
' S

to
rm

 S
ew

er
 &

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t

CURVE TABLE

Curve

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

Radius

280.00'

280.00'

280.00'

170.00'

60.00'

60.00'

60.00'

60.00'

60.00'

230.00'

230.00'

230.00'

220.00'

Chord Direction

N 75°09'18" W

S 75°33'09" E

S 62°42'08" E

S 76°03'07" E

N 00°12'02" E

S 43°00'11" W

N 81°43'37" W

N 01°56'09" E

S 83°20'03" E

S 76°03'07" E

S 76°42'53" E

S 62°58'03" E

S 75°09'18" E

Chord Length

124.55'

120.76'

3.89'

80.80'

60.00'

26.59'

81.02'

79.04'

96.51'

109.32'

104.14'

5.32'

97.86'

Arc Length

125.60'

121.71'

3.89'

81.58'

314.16'

26.81'

88.94'

86.28'

112.12'

110.37'

105.05'

5.32'

98.68'

Central Angle

25°42'03"

24°54'21"

0°47'42"

27°29'41"

300°00'00"

25°36'18"

84°56'05"

82°23'27"

107°04'10"

27°29'41"

26°10'09"

1°19'32"

25°42'03"

Tangent Bearing-in

N 88°00'19" W

S 88°00'19" E

S 63°05'59" E

N 89°47'58" W

S 30°12'02" W

S 30°12'02" W

S 55°48'20" W

N 39°15'35" W

N 43°07'52" E

S 89°47'58" E

S 89°47'58" E

S 63°37'49" E

S 62°18'17" E

Tangent Bearing-out

N 62°18'17" W

S 63°05'59" E

S 62°18'17" E

N 62°18'17" W

S 29°47'58" E

S 55°48'20" W

N 39°15'35" W

N 43°07'52" E

S 29°47'58" E

S 62°18'17" E

S 63°37'49" E

S 62°18'17" E

S 88°00'19" E

File: 6405Final.dwg
Date: 05/13/2021
Drafted By: jim
Sheet: 1 of 2
Revision Date:  May 13, 2021

FORWARD

There are no objections to this plat with respect to 
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.

Certified __________________, 20_____

Department of Administration

NO SCALE

LOCATION MAP
SE1/4 SEC 31, T 22 N, R 18 E,

CITY OF APPLETON
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WI

31 36
6 1E. Broadway Drive

Fr
en

ch
 R

oa
dProject

Location

31 3631

31
6

CTH
 E

/ E
. A

pp
le 

Cree
k R

oa
d

DAVEL ENGINEERING &
ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.
Civil Engineers and Land Surveyors

1164 Province Terrace,  Menasha, WI  54952
Ph:   920-991-1866  Fax:  920-441-0804

www.davel.pro

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 31,
Township 22 North, Range 18 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin

Broadway Hills Estates
First Addition to 

60 0 60 120 180

Bearings are referenced to the East line of the
Southeast 1/4, Section 31, T22N, R18E,

assumed to bear S01°59'40"W, base on the
Outagamie County Coordinate System.

James R. Sehloff; Professional Land Surveyor 2692   Date

Wetland Protected Area:
The following requirements apply as excerpted from City of Appleton Municipal Code 20-312(f):
(3) The following requirements shall be met:
a. Impervious surfaces shall be kept out of the protective area entirely or [as may be approved by the City of

Appleton] to the maximum extent practicable.
b. Where land disturbing construction activity occurs within a protective area, and where no impervious surface

is present, adequate sod or self-sustaining native vegetative cover of seventy percent (70%) or greater shall
be established and maintained. The self-sustaining vegetative cover shall be sufficient to provide for bank
stability, maintenance of fish habitat and filtering of pollutants from upslope overland flow areas under sheet
flow conditions. [Subject to the issuance of all applicable permit], nonvegetative materials, such as rock riprap,
may be employed on the bank as necessary to prevent erosion, such as on steep slopes or where high
velocity flows occur.

c. Best management practices such as filter strips, treatment swales, or wet detention basins, that are designed
to control pollutants from nonpoint sources may be located in the protective area.

(5) Protective areas do not apply to:
d. Post-construction sites from which runoff does not enter the surface water, including wetlands, without first

being treated by a [Stormwater Management Practice that has been approved by the City of Appleton], except
to the extent that vegetative ground cover is necessary to maintain bank stability.

Access Restriction Note:
As owners, we hereby restrict Lot 21 and Lot 27 in that no owner, possessor, user, nor licensee, nor other person
shall have any right of direct vehicular ingress or egress with French Road , as shown on the plat; it being
expressly intended that this restriction shall constitute a restriction for the benefit of the public according to
Section 236.293, Wisconsin State Statues, and shall be enforceable by the City of Appleton.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 2 ____ CSM 7294 _______

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 1 ____ CSM 7294 _______

AutoCAD SHX Text
Outlot 2 ______ Broadway Hills Estates ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 10 _____ Broadway Hills Estates ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 9 ____ Broadway Hills Estates ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 8 _____ Broadway Hills Estates ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 7 _____ Broadway Hills Estates ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Part of Outlot 1 ____________ CSM 5664 ________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Part of Outlot 1 ____________ CSM 5664 ________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' Distribution Easement (Per Doc 1843285)

AutoCAD SHX Text
East line of the Southeast 1/4 S01°59'41"W  2638.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
East 1/4 Corner  Section 31, T22N, R18E Masonry Nail Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
659.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast Corner  Section 31, T22N, R18E Masonry Nail Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
1404.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unplatted Lands ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Shed

AutoCAD SHX Text
French Road _________

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Freedom ____________

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Appleton ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Freedom ____________

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Appleton ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Freedom ____________

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Appleton ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Appleton ___________

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: General Ag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: General Ag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: General Ag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: General Ag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: General Ag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: General Ag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: R1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: R1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: R1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: R1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: R1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning: R1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Drainage Easement (Per Broadway Hills Estates)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Building Setback

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Wetland Protective Area

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Building Setback

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' Building Setback

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' Building Setback

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UR

AutoCAD SHX Text
IB

AutoCAD SHX Text
US

AutoCAD SHX Text
UN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UM



File: 6405Final.dwg
Date: 04/26/2021
Drafted By: jim
Sheet: 2 of 2
Revision Date:  Apr 26, 2021

FORWARD

There are no objections to this plat with respect to 
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.

Certified __________________, 20_____

Department of Administration

DAVEL ENGINEERING &
ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.
Civil Engineers and Land Surveyors

1164 Province Terrace,  Menasha, WI  54952
Ph:   920-991-1866  Fax:  920-441-0804

www.davel.pro

Surveyor's Certificate

I, James R. Sehloff, Professional land surveyor, hereby certify:  That in full compliance with the provisions of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin
Statutes and the subdivision regulations of the City of Appleton, and under the direction of North Appleton Properties, LLC, owners of said
land, I have surveyed divided and mapped First Addition to Broadway Hills Estates; that such plat correctly represents all exterior
boundaries and the subdivision of the land surveyed; and that this land is located in part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 31, Township 22 North, Range 18 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 725,074 Square Feet
(16.6454 Acres) of land described as follows:

Commencing at the East 1/4 corner of Section 31; thence, along the East line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 31, S01'59'40"W,
659.59 feet to the point of beginning; thence, continuing along said East line, S01'59'40"W, 574.22 feet to the Northeast corner of
Broadway Hills Estates; thence, along the North line of said Broadway Hills Estates, N89°51'17"W, 1262.37 feet to the East line of Outlot
1, Certified Survey Map, 5664; thence, along said East line, N02°03'47"E, 575.46 feet to the South line of Certified Survey Map 7294;
thence, along said South line, S89°47'58"E, 1261.64 feet to the point of beginning, subject to all easements, and restrictions of record.

Given under my hand this  day of , 20 .

James R. Sehloff, Wisconsin Professional Land Surveyor No. S-2692

Owner's Certificate

North Appleton Properties, LLC,, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Wisconsin, as the property owner, does hereby certify that said limited liability company caused the land described on this plat to be
surveyed, divided, mapped and dedicated as represented on this plat.

North Appleton Properties, LLC, does further certify this plat is required by s.236.10 or s.236.12 to be submitted to the following for
approval or objection:

     City of Appleton
     Department of Administration

Dated this  day of , 20 .

Gregory Gauerke, Member Date

S t a t e   o f   W i s c o n s i n)

__________ _______County) ss

Personally came before me this ________________ day of ______________________, 20____, the above the property owner(s) to me
known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledge the same.

__________ _____________________  My Commission Expires ____________________
Notary Public, Wisconsin

City of Appleton Approval

Resolved, that the plat of First Addition to Broadway Hills Estates, in the City of Appleton, Outagamie County,
North Appleton Properties, LLC, owners, is hereby approved by the Common Council of the City of Appleton.

Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a copy of a resolution adopted by the the Common Council of the City of
Appleton.

_
Kami Lynch, Clerk Date

Treasurer's Certificate

We, being the duly elected, qualified and acting Treasurer's of the City of Appleton and Outagamie County, do
hereby certify that in accordance with the records in our office, there are no unredeemed tax sales and unpaid
taxes, or special assessments on and of the land included in this plat.

City Treasurer Date

County Treasurer

This Final Plat is contained wholly within the property described in the following recorded instruments:

The property owner of record: Recording Information: Parcel Number(s):
North Appleton Properties, LLC Doc No. 2191480 31-1-9210-14

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 31,
Township 22 North, Range 18 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin

Broadway Hills Estates
First Addition to 

Utility Easement Provisions

An easement for electric, natural gas, and communications service is hereby granted by

North Appleton Properties, LLC, Grantor, to:

Wisconsin Electric Power Company and Wisconsin Gas, LLC, Wisconsin corporations doing business as We
Energies, Grantee,
SBC, Grantee,
and
Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P., Grantee

their respective successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, repair, maintain and replace from time to time,
facilities used in connection with overhead and underground transmission and distribution of electricity and electric
energy, natural gas, telephone and cable TV facilities for such purposes as the same is now or may hereafter be
used, all in, over, under, across, along and upon the property shown within those areas on the plat designated as
”Utility Easement Areas” and the property designated on the plat for streets and alleys, whether public or private,
together with the right to install service connections upon, across within and beneath the surface of each lot to serve
improvements, theron, or on adjacent lots; also the right to trim or cut down trees, brush and roots as may be
reasonably required incident to the rights herein given, and the right to enter upon the subdivided property for all
such purposes. The Grantees agree to restore or cause to have restored, the property, as nearly as is reasonably
possible, to the condition existing prior to such entry by the Grantees or their agents. This
restoration, however, does not apply to the initial installation of said underground and/or above ground electric
facilities, natural gas facilities, or telephone and cable TV facilities or to any trees, brush or roots which may be
removed at any time pursuant to the rights herein granted. Structures shall not be placed over Grantees' facilities or
in, upon or over the property within the lines marked “Utility Easement Areas” without the prior written consent of
Grantees. After installation of any such facilities, the grade of the subdivided property shall not be altered by more
than four inches without written consent of grantees.

The grant of easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns of all
parties hereto.

North Appleton Properties, LLC

Gregory Gauerke, Member Date

Drainage, Water Main and Storm Sewer Easement Provisions

An easement for Drainage, Sanitary Sewer, Water Main and Storm Sewer Easement Provisions is hereby granted
by:

North Appleton Properties, LLC, Grantor, to:

THE CITY OF APPLETON, Grantee,

1. Purpose:  The purpose of this easement is for the Grantee to access, install, regrade, replace, relocate, operate,
maintain, resize and repair Drainage, Sanitary Sewer, Water Main and Storm Sewer Easement and associated
appurtenances.  Grantee does hereby agree to compensate Grantor fully for any damage caused directly or
indirectly from said maintenance, repair, replacement or relocation of Drainage, Sanitary Sewer, Water Main and
Storm Sewer and associated appurtenances that occur outside of the easement area.  Trees, bushes, branches
and roots may be trimmed or removed so as not to interfere with grantee's use of the easement area.

2. Access:  Grantee or its agents shall have the right to enter the grantor's land for the purpose of exercising its
rights in the easement area.

3. Buildings or Other Structures:  Buildings or any other type of structure shall not be placed over Grantees'
facilities or in, upon or over the property within the lines marked “Drainage, Sanitary Sewer & Water Main or
Storm Sewer Easement ”.

4. Elevation:  The grantor agrees that the elevation of the existing ground surface within the easement area will not
be altered without the written consent of grantee.

5. Restoration:  Grantee agrees that it will restore subsurface materials on grantor's land, as nearly as is
reasonably possible, to the prior existing condition when conducting all future maintenance, resizing or repair
activities. Grantor shall be responsible for all surface restoration.  Grantee shall not be required to restore or
compensate for any improvements or improved surfaces such as, but not limited to, curb and gutter, hard
pavements, sidewalks, structures, trees, shrubs and landscaping, disturbed as a result of the maintenance
activities described herein.

6. Notification:  Grantee agrees that it shall give timely notice to the Grantor of routine maintenance work.  Grantee
and Grantor agree to cooperate in good faith to minimize interference or disruption to the normal facility
operations.  Grantee shall provide advance notice to Grantor (except in emergency situations, in which event
notice shall be provided as soon as is practical) of any activity with a reasonable likelihood of interfering or
disrupting the operation Grantor's facility, and to conduct such activities at mutually agreeable times.

7. Drainage easements are conveyance paths for storm water. The placement of fill in a drainage easement, which
interferes with the flow or changes to the shape of the drainage easement by the lot owner or his agent, is
prohibited.  Upon failure of lot owner's to maintain said drainage ways and easements as designed; the City of
Appleton retains the right to perform maintenance and or repairs. The payment of said maintenance and or
repairs shall be equally assessed to the adjacent lot owners.

This grant of easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns of all
parties hereto.

North Appleton Properties, LLC

Gregory Gauerke, Member  Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UR

AutoCAD SHX Text
IB

AutoCAD SHX Text
US

AutoCAD SHX Text
UN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UM



RESOLUTION #8-R-21 

Resolution expressing support for the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program 
May 19, 2021 
Submitted By: Alderperson Schultz – District 9, Alderperson Fenton – District 6, Alderperson 
Meltzer – District 2, Alderperson Prohaska – District 14, Alderperson Wolff – District 12, 
Alderperson Smith – District 10, Alderperson Thao- District 7 
Referred To: Parks & Recreation Committee 
 
WHEREAS; the Wisconsin Legislature created the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program in 1989 to 
preserve valuable natural areas and wildlife habitat, protect water quality and fisheries, and expand 
opportunities for outdoor recreation, and; 

WHEREAS; the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program is set to expire in 2022, a matching funds 
program that has supported land acquisition and capital development by the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (WDNR), local governments, and nonprofit conservation organizations to preserve 
valuable natural areas, wildlife habitat, water quality and outdoor recreation for public benefit around 
the state, and; 

WHEREAS; the Fox Cites region has benefited tremendously from KNSP, a vital funding component in 
the implementation of 170 land conservation and recreation projects totaling $18 million dollars in 
economic benefit which have expanded recreational opportunities and access to the Fox River 
Corridor's natural infrastructure contributing greatly to the quality-of-life enjoyed in the Fox Cities, and;  

WHEREAS; the City of Appleton has been awarded Stewardship funds in the recent past to support 
the Lawe Street Trestle improvement project which opened in the fall of 2020 to significant public use 
and praise, and currently has scheduled a number of key Fox River crossing projects to complete the 
contiguous network of trails along the Hydrologic Heritage Trailway, driven by the City's Trails Master 
Plan which, in the absence of essential KNSP matching philanthropic funds, will be dramatically 
hampered and significantly delayed, and; 

WHEREAS; demand for outdoor recreation opportunities continues to grow, especially in the current 
era of COVID which is seeing trail use increase one-hundredfold, with trail improvements consistently 
ranked as the most desired and needed amenity of Appleton residents, and these needs that can be 
meet with the KNSP's minimal burden on the taxpayer, roughly $20 annually which returns a maximum 

benefit to the community through land conservation, recreational infrastructure and economic 
growth,  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton acknowledges and considers the 
Knowles- Nelson Stewardship Program a valuable tool to preserve and restore natural areas, wildlife 
habitat, and water quality while supporting the development of public nature-based outdoor recreation 
opportunities that promote economic development and enhance quality of life, and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton supports the reauthorization of the Knowles-
Nelson Stewardship Program for ten years and consideration of the proposal in Governor Evers 
budget request of $70 million per year, and  

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton Clerk be directed to forward a copy of this 
resolution to members of the Senate Joint Finance Committee, State Representatives of the Fox 
Cities, Governor Evers and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Secretary, 101 S. 
Webster Street, Madison, WI 53702.  

Attachments: 

KNSP Fox Valley Investments 



KNSP Fox Valley Investments – Loop the Little Lake 

KNSP Fox Valley Investments – Ne.lson Family Herritage Crossing 



   

   

    

 

 

 

   

    

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



   

   

    

 

 

 

   

    

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



   

   

    

 

 

 

   

    

 

 

 

 

• Smalley Park, Shawano, $218,100 

• Newton Blackmour Trail, New London to 

Seymour, $212,875.  

• Herb & Dolly Smith Park, Neenah, $197,600 

• Upper Wanick Park, Sherwood, $143,000 

• Heckrodt addition, $69,548 

• Wiouwash Trail head, Clayton, $30,000 

• Ball diamond lighting, Navarino, $19,000 

• Miller Park, Hortonville, $10,750  

• Sunset Park overlook, Kimberly, $12,000  

• Kiwanis Park, New Holstein, $6,450 

• Picnic Shelter, Vendenbroek, $6,000 

Knowles-Nelson Support for the Fox Valley 
County # Grants KNSP Grant 

Calumet 17 $ 1,080,968 

Outagamie 53 $ 3,641,194 

Shawano 25 $ 1,530,262 

Waupaca 31 $ 2,512,293 

Winnebago 62 $ 9,676,832 

 
 
 



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Be awarded to:  

Name:  

Address:  

In the amount of :

With a 6.2 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$532,500.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$33,000.00

$565,500.00

Fischer-Ulman Construction, Inc.

915 S. Midpark Drive

Appleton, WI 54915

Unit E-21 Miscellaneous Concrete & Street Excavation Repair 

06/02/21

$565,500.00

$536,192.00

05/24/21

5/19/2021

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Kilheffer M\2021 Construction\E-21 Patch\Contract Award Form Unit E-21.xlsx



Bid Tabulation
E-21 Misc Concrete & Street Excavation Repairs
05/17/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
1 Furnish & Install High Early Concrete, 1 Day 20 cu.yds. $22.00 $440.00 $20.00 $400.00
2 Furnish & Install High Early Concrete, 3 Day 300 cu.yds. $18.00 $5,400.00 $18.00 $5,400.00
3 Furnish & Install 9" Plain Concrete Pavement 50 sq.yds. $95.00 $4,750.00 $65.00 $3,250.00
4 Furnish & Install 8" Plain Concrete Pavement 1550 sq.yds. $58.00 $89,900.00 $60.00 $93,000.00
5 Furnish & Install 7" Plain Concrete Pavement 2300 sq.yds. $55.00 $126,500.00 $55.00 $126,500.00
6 Furnish & Install  3"' Asphalt Pavement 100 sq.yds. $62.00 $6,200.00 $60.00 $6,000.00
7 Unclassified Excavation 50 cu.yds. $18.00 $900.00 $20.00 $1,000.00
8 Furnish & Install Stone Base  550 ton $17.00 $9,350.00 $15.00 $8,250.00
9 Furnish & Place Aggregate Slurry 10 cu.yds. $90.00 $900.00 $100.00 $1,000.00

10 Furnish & Install  18" Curb & Gutter 100 lin.ft. $35.00 $3,500.00 $32.00 $3,200.00
11 Furnish & Install Curb Head (12") 200 lin.ft. $35.00 $7,000.00 $30.00 $6,000.00
12 Furnish & Install 30" Curb & Gutter 250 lin.ft. $42.00 $10,500.00 $35.00 $8,750.00
13 Furnish & Install  Special Curb 50 lin.ft. $32.00 $1,600.00 $35.00 $1,750.00
14 Furnish & Install 8" Driveway Apron 150 sq.ft. $6.20 $930.00 $6.00 $900.00
15 Furnish & Install 7" Driveway Apron 500 sq.ft. $6.00 $3,000.00 $5.85 $2,925.00
16 Furnish & Install 5" Driveway Apron 5000 sq.ft. $5.50 $27,500.00 $5.50 $27,500.00
17 Furnish & Install 8" Concrete Sidewalk 100 sq.ft. $6.20 $620.00 $6.00 $600.00
18 Furnish & Install 7" Concrete Sidewalk 500 sq.ft. $6.00 $3,000.00 $5.85 $2,925.00
19 Furnish & Install 5" Concrete Sidewalk 2000 sq.ft. $5.50 $11,000.00 $5.50 $11,000.00
20 Furnish & Install 4" Concrete Sidewalk 5000 sq.ft. $4.95 $24,750.00 $5.00 $25,000.00
21 Furnish & Install 7" Handicap Ramp 1600 sq.ft. $6.00 $9,600.00 $5.75 $9,200.00
22 Furnish & Install Truncated Dome 250 sq.ft. $32.00 $8,000.00 $34.00 $8,500.00
23 Concrete Pavement Removal 4500 sq.yd. $3.50 $15,750.00 $4.00 $18,000.00
24 Asphalt Pavement Removal 150 sq.yd. $3.50 $525.00 $4.00 $600.00
25 Curb & Gutter Removal 275 lin.ft. $4.00 $1,100.00 $5.00 $1,375.00
26 Curb Removal 625 lin.ft. $3.50 $2,187.50 $5.00 $3,125.00
27 Asphalt/Concrete Driveway Apron Removal 5600 sq.ft. $1.35 $7,560.00 $1.50 $8,400.00
28 Asphalt/Concrete Handicap Ramp Removal 1600 sq.ft. $1.35 $2,160.00 $1.55 $2,480.00
29 Asphalt/Concrete Sidewalk Removal 7600 sq.ft. $1.35 $10,260.00 $1.50 $11,400.00
30 Full Depth Sawcut 8500 lin.ft. $2.80 $23,800.00 $4.00 $34,000.00

Bid 
Item

Item Description Quantity Unit
Fischer-Ulman Construction Al Dix Concrete Inc



Bid Tabulation
E-21 Misc Concrete & Street Excavation Repairs
05/17/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Bid 

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Fischer-Ulman Construction Al Dix Concrete Inc

31 Furnish & Install Drilled-In Tie Bars - #3x12" 50 ea. $6.00 $300.00 $5.00 $250.00
32 Furnish & Install Reinforcing Rod #4's 50 lin.ft. $1.50 $75.00 $1.50 $75.00
33 Furnish & Install Drilled-In Tie Bars - #6x12" 3500 ea. $7.50 $26,250.00 $8.00 $28,000.00
34 Furnish & Install Smooth Dowels  - #8x18" 200 ea. $12.00 $2,400.00 $13.00 $2,600.00
35 Furnish & Install Dowel Basket Assembly 40 lin.ft. $19.00 $760.00 $20.00 $800.00
36 Furnish Terrace Restoration 50 sq.yds. $10.00 $500.00 $8.00 $400.00
37 Adjust Storm maintenance hole Casting 4 ea. $300.00 $1,200.00 $325.00 $1,300.00
38 Adjust Storm Inlet Casting 5 ea. $300.00 $1,500.00 $325.00 $1,625.00
39 Adjust Sanitary MH Casting 4 ea. $325.00 $1,300.00 $325.00 $1,300.00
40 Furnish & Install Storm maintenance hole Casting 1 ea. $650.00 $650.00 $650.00 $650.00
41 Furnish & Install "C" Inlet Casting 2 ea. $650.00 $1,300.00 $700.00 $1,400.00
42 Furnish & Install "E" Inlet Casting 2 ea. $700.00 $1,400.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
43 Furnish & Install Sanitary maintenance hole Casting 2 ea. $675.00 $1,350.00 $700.00 $1,400.00
44 Rebuild Inlet 2 ea. $2,600.00 $5,200.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00
45 Furnish & Install 10", 12" Inlet Lead 30 lin.ft. $135.00 $4,050.00 $90.00 $2,700.00
46 Furnish & Install Type "D-HR" Inlet Protection 20 ea. $60.00 $1,200.00 $75.00 $1,500.00
47 Furnish & Maintain Traffic Controls for Arterial/Collector  Work in Travel Lane (pp.25 TTC)                  4 ea. $750.00 $3,000.00 $800.00 $3,200.00
48 Furnish & Maintain Traffic Controls for Arterial/Collector  Half Road Closure (PP.26 TTC)               6 ea. $950.00 $5,700.00 $1,000.00 $6,000.00
49 Furnish Traffic Control for Detour of Arterial/Collector (pp.29 TTC)                    4 ea. $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $2,100.00 $8,400.00
50 Furnish & Maintain Message Board 40 day $100.00 $4,000.00 $110.00 $4,400.00

$488,817.50 $505,930.00



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Unit L-21 Rebid Sewer and Water Construction - Lightning and Edgewood

Be awarded to:  

Name:  Feaker and Sons Co., Inc

Address:  P.O. Box 5817 

De Pere, WI 54115

In the amount of :

With a 5.0 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

$1,538,860.00

$1,000,000.00

05/24/21

06/02/21

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$1,004,463.50

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$50,000.00

$1,054,463.50

5/19/2021

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Neuberger P\MSword\L-21 Lightning Dr and Edgewood Dr San_Water\L-21 REBID Lightning Edgewood Sewer Water Contract Award Form.xlsx



Bid Tabulation

L-21 Sewer & Water Lightning Drive and Edgewood Drive Re-bid
05/17/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 Mobilization 1 LS $48,000.00 $48,000.00 $20,365.50 $20,365.50

2 Traffic Control 1 LS $6,075.00 $6,075.00 $3,260.00 $3,260.00

3 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Erosion Control 1 LS $27,795.00 $27,795.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00

4 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Inlet Protection Type D-M 8 EA $150.00 $1,200.00 $153.00 $1,224.00

5 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Trackout Control 4 EA $1,250.00 $5,000.00 $1,665.00 $6,660.00

6 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Ditch Check (12" Sediment Log) 120 LF $7.50 $900.00 $11.00 $1,320.00

7 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Silt Fence 1765 LF $2.50 $4,412.50 $2.50 $4,412.50

8 24-inch CMP Culvert 20 LF $70.00 $1,400.00 $70.00 $1,400.00

9 15-inch Sanitary Sewer (Trenchless in 30" Casing) 270 LF $700.00 $189,000.00 $760.00 $205,200.00

10 15-inch Sanitary Sewer (Open Cut) 1360 LF $63.00 $85,680.00 $64.00 $87,040.00

11 10-inch Sanitary Sewer 35 LF $53.00 $1,855.00 $86.00 $3,010.00

12 Standard Sanitary Manhole 100 VF $225.00 $22,500.00 $276.00 $27,600.00

13 Sanitary Manhole Casting 7 EA $400.00 $2,800.00 $834.00 $5,838.00

14 Furnish & Install 16" Water Main 2400 LF $102.00 $244,800.00 $125.00 $300,000.00

15 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main (Trenchless in 24" Casing) 266 LF $560.00 $148,960.00 $585.00 $155,610.00

16 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main (Open Cut) 1400 LF $57.00 $79,800.00 $55.00 $77,000.00

17 Furnish & Install 8" Water Main 15 LF $65.00 $975.00 $161.00 $2,415.00

18 Furnish & Install 6" Hydrant Lead 111 LF $36.00 $3,996.00 $73.00 $8,103.00

19 Furnish & Install Hydrant 8 EA $4,175.00 $33,400.00 $4,400.00 $35,200.00

20 Furnish & Install Hydrant, 8-foot 3 EA $4,350.00 $13,050.00 $4,575.00 $13,725.00

21 Furnish & Install 16" Gatve Valve w/ Box 6 EA $7,715.00 $46,290.00 $7,710.00 $46,260.00

22 Furnish & Install 12" Gatve Valve w/ Box 4 EA $3,385.00 $13,540.00 $3,335.00 $13,340.00

23 Furnish & Install 6" Gate Valve w/ Box 11 EA $1,480.00 $16,280.00 $1,350.00 $14,850.00

24 Furnish & Install 16" 45-degree Bend 1 EA $1,860.00 $1,860.00 $1,825.00 $1,825.00

25 Furnish & Install 12" 45-degree Bend 3 EA $1,015.00 $3,045.00 $884.00 $2,652.00

26 Furnish & Install 12" 22.5-degree Bend 2 EA $925.00 $1,850.00 $795.00 $1,590.00

$1,004,463.50 $1,045,000.00

Bid 

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Feaker & Sons Co Inc PTS Contractors, Inc



Bid Tabulation

L-21 Sewer & Water Lightning Drive and Edgewood Drive Re-bid
05/17/2021 01:45 PM CDT

1 Mobilization 1 LS

2 Traffic Control 1 LS

3 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Erosion Control 1 LS

4 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Inlet Protection Type D-M 8 EA

5 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Trackout Control 4 EA

6 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Ditch Check (12" Sediment Log) 120 LF

7 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Silt Fence 1765 LF

8 24-inch CMP Culvert 20 LF

9 15-inch Sanitary Sewer (Trenchless in 30" Casing) 270 LF

10 15-inch Sanitary Sewer (Open Cut) 1360 LF

11 10-inch Sanitary Sewer 35 LF

12 Standard Sanitary Manhole 100 VF

13 Sanitary Manhole Casting 7 EA

14 Furnish & Install 16" Water Main 2400 LF

15 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main (Trenchless in 24" Casing) 266 LF

16 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main (Open Cut) 1400 LF

17 Furnish & Install 8" Water Main 15 LF

18 Furnish & Install 6" Hydrant Lead 111 LF

19 Furnish & Install Hydrant 8 EA

20 Furnish & Install Hydrant, 8-foot 3 EA

21 Furnish & Install 16" Gatve Valve w/ Box 6 EA

22 Furnish & Install 12" Gatve Valve w/ Box 4 EA

23 Furnish & Install 6" Gate Valve w/ Box 11 EA

24 Furnish & Install 16" 45-degree Bend 1 EA

25 Furnish & Install 12" 45-degree Bend 3 EA

26 Furnish & Install 12" 22.5-degree Bend 2 EA

Bid 

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

$9,090.00 $9,090.00 $52,112.00 $52,112.00

$16,665.00 $16,665.00 $6,862.00 $6,862.00

$2,525.00 $2,525.00 $31,254.00 $31,254.00

$151.50 $1,212.00 $125.00 $1,000.00

$1,515.00 $6,060.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00

$10.10 $1,212.00 $15.00 $1,800.00

$2.53 $4,465.45 $2.50 $4,412.50

$71.71 $1,434.20 $72.00 $1,440.00

$860.89 $232,440.30 $765.00 $206,550.00

$74.21 $100,925.60 $90.00 $122,400.00

$58.67 $2,053.45 $55.00 $1,925.00

$226.88 $22,688.00 $300.00 $30,000.00

$360.57 $2,523.99 $703.00 $4,921.00

$109.97 $263,928.00 $102.00 $244,800.00

$686.04 $182,486.64 $604.00 $160,664.00

$61.44 $86,016.00 $66.00 $92,400.00

$72.76 $1,091.40 $69.00 $1,035.00

$46.05 $5,111.55 $40.00 $4,440.00

$4,570.25 $36,562.00 $4,606.00 $36,848.00

$4,889.41 $14,668.23 $4,790.00 $14,370.00

$8,046.34 $48,278.04 $8,245.00 $49,470.00

$3,598.63 $14,394.52 $3,568.00 $14,272.00

$1,597.82 $17,576.02 $1,460.00 $16,060.00

$2,157.36 $2,157.36 $1,916.00 $1,916.00

$1,201.90 $3,605.70 $977.00 $2,931.00

$1,111.00 $2,222.00 $879.00 $1,758.00

$1,081,392.45 $1,109,640.50

DE GROOT, INC. Dorner Inc.



Bid Tabulation

L-21 Sewer & Water Lightning Drive and Edgewood Drive Re-bid
05/17/2021 01:45 PM CDT

1 Mobilization 1 LS

2 Traffic Control 1 LS

3 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Erosion Control 1 LS

4 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Inlet Protection Type D-M 8 EA

5 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Trackout Control 4 EA

6 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Ditch Check (12" Sediment Log) 120 LF

7 Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Silt Fence 1765 LF

8 24-inch CMP Culvert 20 LF

9 15-inch Sanitary Sewer (Trenchless in 30" Casing) 270 LF

10 15-inch Sanitary Sewer (Open Cut) 1360 LF

11 10-inch Sanitary Sewer 35 LF

12 Standard Sanitary Manhole 100 VF

13 Sanitary Manhole Casting 7 EA

14 Furnish & Install 16" Water Main 2400 LF

15 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main (Trenchless in 24" Casing) 266 LF

16 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main (Open Cut) 1400 LF

17 Furnish & Install 8" Water Main 15 LF

18 Furnish & Install 6" Hydrant Lead 111 LF

19 Furnish & Install Hydrant 8 EA

20 Furnish & Install Hydrant, 8-foot 3 EA

21 Furnish & Install 16" Gatve Valve w/ Box 6 EA

22 Furnish & Install 12" Gatve Valve w/ Box 4 EA

23 Furnish & Install 6" Gate Valve w/ Box 11 EA

24 Furnish & Install 16" 45-degree Bend 1 EA

25 Furnish & Install 12" 45-degree Bend 3 EA

26 Furnish & Install 12" 22.5-degree Bend 2 EA

Bid 

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Unit Price Extension

$35,000.00 $35,000.00

$6,000.00 $6,000.00

$0.01 $0.01

$80.00 $640.00

$500.00 $2,000.00

$10.00 $1,200.00

$2.00 $3,530.00

$56.00 $1,120.00

$1,050.00 $283,500.00

$80.00 $108,800.00

$63.00 $2,205.00

$300.00 $30,000.00

$450.00 $3,150.00

$135.00 $324,000.00

$900.00 $239,400.00

$68.00 $95,200.00

$68.00 $1,020.00

$75.00 $8,325.00

$4,700.00 $37,600.00

$4,900.00 $14,700.00

$8,800.00 $52,800.00

$3,600.00 $14,400.00

$1,500.00 $16,500.00

$2,000.00 $2,000.00

$1,000.00 $3,000.00

$1,000.00 $2,000.00

$1,288,090.01

Carl Bowers & Sons Const Co.



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Be awarded to:  

Name:  

Address:  

In the amount of :

With a 7.5 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

Green Bay, WI 54311

Unit Y-21 Sewer & Water Reconstruction #3 

06/02/21

$1,121,665.00

$796,168.00

05/24/21

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$797,797.97

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$60,073.30

$857,871.27

Kruczek Construction Inc.

3636 Kewaunee Road

5/19/2021

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Buetow S\2021 Projects\Y-21\Contract Award Form Unit Y-21.xlsx



Bid Tabulation
Y-21 Sewer & Water #3
05/10/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
1 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main 825 Lin. Ft. $118.00 $97,350.00 $130.00 $107,250.00
2 Furnish & Install 8" Water Main 3350 Lin. Ft. $77.00 $257,950.00 $110.00 $368,500.00
3 Furnish & Install 24" Steel Casing Pipe (Jack & Bore) 120 Lin. Ft. $376.00 $45,120.00 $520.00 $62,400.00
4 Furnish & Install 6" Hydrant Lead 35 Lin. Ft. $243.50 $8,522.50 $250.00 $8,750.00
5 Furnish & Install Hydrant 7 EA $4,700.00 $32,900.00 $4,435.00 $31,045.00
6 Furnish & Install 12" Gate Valve with Box 4 EA $3,500.00 $14,000.00 $3,270.00 $13,080.00
7 Furnish & Install 8" Gate Valve with Box 16 EA $2,000.00 $32,000.00 $1,865.00 $29,840.00
8 Furnish & Install 6" Gate Valve with Box 9 EA $1,400.00 $12,600.00 $1,350.00 $12,150.00
9 Furnish & Install 12" Bend 3 EA $1,050.00 $3,150.00 $888.00 $2,664.00

10 Furnish & Install 8" Bend 20 EA $420.00 $8,400.00 $456.00 $9,120.00
11 Furnish & Install 6" Bend 1 EA $307.00 $307.00 $360.00 $360.00
12 Furnish & Install 1" Service 350 Lin. Ft. $175.00 $61,250.00 $150.00 $52,500.00
13 Furnish & Install 2" Service 15 Lin. Ft. $189.00 $2,835.00 $240.00 $3,600.00
14 Furnish & Install 6" Service 20 Lin. Ft. $188.00 $3,760.00 $177.00 $3,540.00
15 Service Connection 41 EA $135.00 $5,535.00 $350.00 $14,350.00
16 Furnish & Install Curb Box (Complete) 40 EA $645.00 $25,800.00 $812.00 $32,480.00
17 Reconnect Sanitary Lateral 5 EA $375.00 $1,875.00 $675.00 $3,375.00
18 Furnish & Install 4"-6" Sanitary Lateral 200 Lin. Ft. $144.00 $28,800.00 $174.00 $34,800.00
19 Furnish & Install 12" Storm Sewer 15 Lin. Ft. $99.00 $1,485.00 $119.00 $1,785.00
20 Remove & Replace 8" Concrete Pavement 190 Sq. Yds. $75.75 $14,392.50 $95.00 $18,050.00
21 Remove & Replace 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 150 Sq. Yds. $79.50 $11,925.00 $91.00 $13,650.00
22 Remove & Replace Concrete 4" or 5" Sidewalk 2350 Sq. Ft. $6.60 $15,510.00 $6.30 $14,805.00
23 Remove & Replace Concrete 7" Sidewalk 525 Sq. Ft. $7.20 $3,780.00 $6.80 $3,570.00
24 Remove & Replace Concrete 5" Apron 1675 Sq. Ft. $6.60 $11,055.00 $6.40 $10,720.00
25 Remove & Replace Concrete 7" Apron 850 Sq. Ft. $7.20 $6,120.00 $6.80 $5,780.00
26 Remove & Replace HMA 3" Apron 1775 Sq. Ft. $5.10 $9,052.50 $5.20 $9,230.00
27 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking (Yellow Paint)(4") 40 Lin. Ft. $5.10 $204.00 $5.20 $208.00
28 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking (White Paint)(4") 250 Lin. Ft. $1.00 $250.00 $1.00 $250.00
29 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking Crosswalk (6") 80 Lin. Ft. $3.80 $304.00 $3.60 $288.00
30 Furnish & Install Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 42 EA $100.00 $4,200.00 $130.00 $5,460.00
31 Seymour Street Spot Repair 1 Lump Sum $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $24,625.00 $24,625.00
32 Edison Avenue Watermain Cut & Cap 1 LS $6,800.00 $6,800.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00
33 Temporary Asphalt Pavement 1 Lump Sum $43,940.47 $43,940.47 $40,000.00 $40,000.00
34 Temporary Traffic Control 1 Lump Sum $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00
35 Furnish & Install Extra Stone Bedding 25 Tons $25.00 $625.00 $11.00 $275.00

$797,797.97 $960,000.00

Bid 
Item

Item Description Quantity Unit
Kruczek Construction Inc. PTS Contractors, Inc



Bid Tabulation
Y-21 Sewer & Water #3
05/10/2021 01:45 PM CDT

1 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main 825 Lin. Ft.
2 Furnish & Install 8" Water Main 3350 Lin. Ft.
3 Furnish & Install 24" Steel Casing Pipe (Jack & Bore) 120 Lin. Ft.
4 Furnish & Install 6" Hydrant Lead 35 Lin. Ft.
5 Furnish & Install Hydrant 7 EA
6 Furnish & Install 12" Gate Valve with Box 4 EA
7 Furnish & Install 8" Gate Valve with Box 16 EA
8 Furnish & Install 6" Gate Valve with Box 9 EA
9 Furnish & Install 12" Bend 3 EA

10 Furnish & Install 8" Bend 20 EA
11 Furnish & Install 6" Bend 1 EA
12 Furnish & Install 1" Service 350 Lin. Ft.
13 Furnish & Install 2" Service 15 Lin. Ft.
14 Furnish & Install 6" Service 20 Lin. Ft.
15 Service Connection 41 EA
16 Furnish & Install Curb Box (Complete) 40 EA
17 Reconnect Sanitary Lateral 5 EA
18 Furnish & Install 4"-6" Sanitary Lateral 200 Lin. Ft.
19 Furnish & Install 12" Storm Sewer 15 Lin. Ft.
20 Remove & Replace 8" Concrete Pavement 190 Sq. Yds.
21 Remove & Replace 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 150 Sq. Yds.
22 Remove & Replace Concrete 4" or 5" Sidewalk 2350 Sq. Ft.
23 Remove & Replace Concrete 7" Sidewalk 525 Sq. Ft.
24 Remove & Replace Concrete 5" Apron 1675 Sq. Ft.
25 Remove & Replace Concrete 7" Apron 850 Sq. Ft.
26 Remove & Replace HMA 3" Apron 1775 Sq. Ft.
27 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking (Yellow Paint)(4") 40 Lin. Ft.
28 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking (White Paint)(4") 250 Lin. Ft.
29 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking Crosswalk (6") 80 Lin. Ft.
30 Furnish & Install Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 42 EA
31 Seymour Street Spot Repair 1 Lump Sum
32 Edison Avenue Watermain Cut & Cap 1 LS
33 Temporary Asphalt Pavement 1 Lump Sum
34 Temporary Traffic Control 1 Lump Sum
35 Furnish & Install Extra Stone Bedding 25 Tons

Bid 
Item

Item Description Quantity Unit
Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
$155.00 $127,875.00 $144.00 $118,800.00
$105.00 $351,750.00 $114.00 $381,900.00
$745.00 $89,400.00 $562.00 $67,440.00
$100.00 $3,500.00 $229.00 $8,015.00

$4,300.00 $30,100.00 $4,816.00 $33,712.00
$3,600.00 $14,400.00 $3,587.00 $14,348.00
$2,100.00 $33,600.00 $2,036.00 $32,576.00
$1,500.00 $13,500.00 $1,455.00 $13,095.00
$875.00 $2,625.00 $913.00 $2,739.00
$420.00 $8,400.00 $450.00 $9,000.00
$310.00 $310.00 $345.00 $345.00
$140.00 $49,000.00 $70.00 $24,500.00
$150.00 $2,250.00 $90.00 $1,350.00
$150.00 $3,000.00 $89.00 $1,780.00
$300.00 $12,300.00 $634.00 $25,994.00
$800.00 $32,000.00 $819.00 $32,760.00
$500.00 $2,500.00 $2,053.00 $10,265.00
$150.00 $30,000.00 $147.00 $29,400.00
$120.00 $1,800.00 $119.00 $1,785.00
$73.50 $13,965.00 $78.00 $14,820.00
$78.75 $11,812.50 $83.00 $12,450.00
$6.30 $14,805.00 $7.00 $16,450.00
$6.85 $3,596.25 $7.80 $4,095.00
$6.30 $10,552.50 $7.00 $11,725.00
$6.85 $5,822.50 $7.80 $6,630.00
$5.25 $9,318.75 $4.90 $8,697.50
$5.25 $210.00 $17.30 $692.00
$1.05 $262.50 $17.30 $4,325.00
$3.70 $296.00 $25.90 $2,072.00

$100.00 $4,200.00 $90.00 $3,780.00
$23,000.00 $23,000.00 $25,724.00 $25,724.00
$5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,776.00 $5,776.00

$40,000.00 $40,000.00 $23,678.00 $23,678.00
$15,000.00 $15,000.00 $24,458.00 $24,458.00

$15.00 $375.00 $25.00 $625.00
$966,526.00 $975,801.50

Jossart Brothers, Inc. Dorner Inc.



Bid Tabulation
Y-21 Sewer & Water #3
05/10/2021 01:45 PM CDT

1 Furnish & Install 12" Water Main 825 Lin. Ft.
2 Furnish & Install 8" Water Main 3350 Lin. Ft.
3 Furnish & Install 24" Steel Casing Pipe (Jack & Bore) 120 Lin. Ft.
4 Furnish & Install 6" Hydrant Lead 35 Lin. Ft.
5 Furnish & Install Hydrant 7 EA
6 Furnish & Install 12" Gate Valve with Box 4 EA
7 Furnish & Install 8" Gate Valve with Box 16 EA
8 Furnish & Install 6" Gate Valve with Box 9 EA
9 Furnish & Install 12" Bend 3 EA

10 Furnish & Install 8" Bend 20 EA
11 Furnish & Install 6" Bend 1 EA
12 Furnish & Install 1" Service 350 Lin. Ft.
13 Furnish & Install 2" Service 15 Lin. Ft.
14 Furnish & Install 6" Service 20 Lin. Ft.
15 Service Connection 41 EA
16 Furnish & Install Curb Box (Complete) 40 EA
17 Reconnect Sanitary Lateral 5 EA
18 Furnish & Install 4"-6" Sanitary Lateral 200 Lin. Ft.
19 Furnish & Install 12" Storm Sewer 15 Lin. Ft.
20 Remove & Replace 8" Concrete Pavement 190 Sq. Yds.
21 Remove & Replace 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 150 Sq. Yds.
22 Remove & Replace Concrete 4" or 5" Sidewalk 2350 Sq. Ft.
23 Remove & Replace Concrete 7" Sidewalk 525 Sq. Ft.
24 Remove & Replace Concrete 5" Apron 1675 Sq. Ft.
25 Remove & Replace Concrete 7" Apron 850 Sq. Ft.
26 Remove & Replace HMA 3" Apron 1775 Sq. Ft.
27 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking (Yellow Paint)(4") 40 Lin. Ft.
28 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking (White Paint)(4") 250 Lin. Ft.
29 Furnish & Paint Pavement Marking Crosswalk (6") 80 Lin. Ft.
30 Furnish & Install Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 42 EA
31 Seymour Street Spot Repair 1 Lump Sum
32 Edison Avenue Watermain Cut & Cap 1 LS
33 Temporary Asphalt Pavement 1 Lump Sum
34 Temporary Traffic Control 1 Lump Sum
35 Furnish & Install Extra Stone Bedding 25 Tons

Bid 
Item

Item Description Quantity Unit
Unit Price Extension
$179.00 $147,675.00
$137.50 $460,625.00
$606.00 $72,720.00
$192.00 $6,720.00

$4,545.00 $31,815.00
$4,085.00 $16,340.00
$2,340.00 $37,440.00
$1,730.00 $15,570.00
$1,230.00 $3,690.00
$725.00 $14,500.00
$500.00 $500.00
$98.00 $34,300.00

$170.00 $2,550.00
$110.00 $2,200.00
$100.00 $4,100.00
$854.00 $34,160.00

$6,400.00 $32,000.00
$102.00 $20,400.00
$90.00 $1,350.00

$106.00 $20,140.00
$100.00 $15,000.00

$7.00 $16,450.00
$7.55 $3,963.75
$7.00 $11,725.00
$7.55 $6,417.50
$6.10 $10,827.50

$16.25 $650.00
$16.25 $4,062.50
$24.30 $1,944.00

$150.00 $6,300.00
$19,980.00 $19,980.00
$15,350.00 $15,350.00
$29,500.00 $29,500.00
$22,300.00 $22,300.00

$52.00 $1,300.00
$1,124,565.25

Superior Sewer & Water



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Be awarded to:  

Name:  

Address:  

In the amount of :

With a 15 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N
Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$207,716.50

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$31,157.50

$238,874.00

Norcon Corporation

5600 Municipal Street

Schofield, WI 54476

Unit AA-21 Pacific Street overPeabody Park Bridge Maintenance

06/02/21

$245,000.00

$240,000.00

05/24/21

5/24/2021
J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Weyenberg C\Projects\2021\AA-21 Pacific Street Bridge Maintenance\Contract Award Form Unit AA-21.xlsx



Bid Tabulation
AA-21 Pacific St over Peabody Park Bridge Maintenance (#7811577)
05/24/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 Removing Pavement 125 sq.yd. $33.00 $4,125.00 $0.01 $1.25 $40.00 $5,000.00

2 Removing Curb & Gutter 80 lin.ft. $8.50 $680.00 $17.90 $1,432.00 $14.00 $1,120.00

3 Removing Concrete Sidewalk 65 sq.yd. $17.00 $1,105.00 $0.01 $0.65 $15.00 $975.00

4 Concrete Pavement Approach Slab (including rebar) 125 sq.yd. $215.00 $26,875.00 $185.00 $23,125.00 $185.00 $23,125.00

5 Expansion Device 93 lin.ft. $310.00 $28,830.00 $250.00 $23,250.00 $350.00 $32,550.00

6 Bar Steel Reinforcement HS Coated Structures 2150 lb. $3.25 $6,987.50 $1.05 $2,257.50 $4.25 $9,137.50

7 Joint Repair 42 sq.yd. $687.00 $28,854.00 $1,075.00 $45,150.00 $1,500.00 $63,000.00

8 Concrete Masonry Overlay Decks 16 cu.yd $1,575.00 $25,200.00 $175.00 $2,800.00 $2,000.00 $32,000.00

9 Concrete Curb & Gutter Integral 30-Inch Type D 80 lin.ft. $43.00 $3,440.00 $39.00 $3,120.00 $35.00 $2,800.00

10 Concrete Sidewalk 7-inch (including rebar) 510 sq.ft. $13.00 $6,630.00 $8.80 $4,488.00 $8.00 $4,080.00

11 Cleaning and Painting Bearings 20 each $585.00 $11,700.00 $600.00 $12,000.00 $500.00 $10,000.00

12 Mobilization 1 lump sum $20,400.00 $20,400.00 $98,000.00 $98,000.00 $45,500.00 $45,500.00

13 Traffic Control 1 lump sum $7,300.00 $7,300.00 $7,530.00 $7,530.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00

14 Preparation Decks - Type 1 50 sq.ft. $190.00 $9,500.00 $70.00 $3,500.00 $200.00 $10,000.00

15 Preparation Decks - Type 2 25 sq.ft. $210.00 $5,250.00 $90.00 $2,250.00 $315.00 $7,875.00

16 Concrete Surface Repair 50 sq.ft. $245.00 $12,250.00 $40.00 $2,000.00 $165.00 $8,250.00

17 Concrete Surface Repair - Abutment 1 lump sum $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $4,100.00 $4,100.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00

18 Epoxy Injection Repair 1 lump sum $6,250.00 $6,250.00 $3,955.00 $3,955.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00

19 Inlet Protection 4 each $35.00 $140.00 $360.00 $1,440.00 $350.00 $1,400.00

$207,716.50 $240,399.40 $262,412.50

Zenith Tech, INC. bridgeBid 
Item

Item Description Quantity Unit
Norcon Corporation LUNDA CONSTRUCTION







 

   

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: May 26, 2021 

RE: Planning Option Agreement Extension for the Blue Ramp and Conway Hotel 
Sites – Merge, LLC  

 
 
The City of Appleton entered into a Planning Option Agreement with Merge, LLC to 
provide a 9-month initial term to conduct due diligence for a potential mixed-use 
development on the Blue Ramp and Conway Hotel sites on March 1, 2020.  In return for 
this option, Merge paid the City $1,000.   
 
This Option was mutually extended to May 31, 2021 per the Option Agreement.  Merge, 
LLC has requested an extended term of six (6) months to finalize development 
agreements.  Per Section 2 of the original Option, Merge, LLC paid the City an additional 
$5,000 for the first extension.  This second extension reflects the same option fee of an 
additional $5,000. 
 
Merge and staff are working on a Development Agreement for Phase I, and we anticipate 
moving on to a Development Agreement for Phase II soon.  We expect the Development 
Agreement for Phase I to be completed early this summer, with construction to begin in 
2022 and completion in 2024.  Since March 1, 2020, Merge, LLC has completed 
interviews with community stakeholders, prepared preliminary conceptual mixed-use 
plans, and begun assembly of the financing necessary.  Given the cost to conduct the due 
diligence and prepare conceptual plans, Merge Urban Development Group would like the 
continued assurance that the City would be interested in selling these parcels for a mixed-
use development that is aligned with our Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 
A six (6) month extension to the Planning Option Agreement for the Blue Ramp and 

Conway Hotel Sites from Merge, LLC BE APPROVED.   

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



 

PLANNING OPTION AGREEMENT – SECOND TERM EXTENSION 

  Merge, LLC (the “Developer”), an Iowa limited liability company d/b/a Merge Urban Development 
Group, with a business office of 604 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 and the City of Appleton (the “City”) 
having  its  office  as  100  North  Appleton  Street,  Appleton,  WI    54911;  and,  Developer  and  the  City 
(hereinafter collectively “Parties”) AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Parties  previously  entered  into  an  Agreement,  attached  hereto,  granting  Developer’s 
requested planning option to allow time to complete all due diligence necessary to determine 
the  physical  and  financial  feasibility  of  constructing  a mixed‐use  development with  rental 
units and light‐ retail space; and 

 
2. The Agreement, and rights conveyed therein, terminated on November 30, 2020 and a First 

Term Extension, attached hereto, extended the Agreement, which is set to expire on May 31, 
2021, unless further extended in accordance with the Extended Term option contained within 
the Agreement.  
 

3. The  Parties  mutually  agree  that  the  Agreement’s  termination  date  shall  be  extended  to 
November  30,  2021,  in  accordance with  the  Extended  Term  option  contained within  the 
Agreement. 
 

4. In  order  to  secure  extension,  the  Developer  agrees  to  pay  an  additional  non‐refundable 
payment of $5,000 to the City as provided in Section 2 of the Agreement. 
 

5. All other terms, conditions and the like of the Agreement shall remain unchanged. 
 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Term Extension Agreement 
dated this _____ day of May, 2021. 

MERGE, LLC 
 
 

Witness: _______________________________    By: _____________________________________ 
Printed Name: __________________________    Printed Name: ____________________________ 
    Title: ____________________________________ 
     

 
CITY OF APPLETON 

 
Witness: ________________________________    By: ____________________________________ 
Printed Name: ____________________________          Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

 
 
Witness: ________________________________    By: ____________________________________ 
Printed Name: ____________________________          Kami Lynch, City Clerk 

CityLaw A20‐0044 













100 130

122

13
0

12
0

115

13
1

10010

12
4

12
0

12
5

103

12
4

13
5

13
3

12
9

12
7

12
5

12
3

12
1

11
7

11
5

11
3

11
1

10
9

10
7

10
3

10
1

11
9

10
9

11
1-
13

10
1-
05

10
7

10
0

11
6

121
22
2 23
0

221

22
5

221

21
4

21
0 200

21
6

20
1

21
1

20
5

20
7

20
3

20
0

21
8

22
4

22
6

22
8

22
0

22
2

21
5

20
1

20
7

21
1

10
9

10
7

131

90.83

45

12
0

84.75

22
6.
39

10
6.
39

177.9

43.5

223.16 207.26120.89

284.82

169.05

46.05160.1 31

80

80.05

142.3

30
36

52

67

78
14
7.
17

17.87

17
5.
17

67
.5

33
2.
78

10
6.
45

22
6.
39

219.39146.26

97
.1
7

189.39176.26

33
2.
34

163.16

13
1.
67

22
6.
39

14
0

115.30

121.72

45

240.15

177.9

92

15
0.
17

48

48

16
6.
5

15
0.
17

180.05

180.05

19
6.
39

60

79
.1
7

18
.7
523

19
.2

96
60

40

40

16
6.
17

16

16
6.
17

34
.0
6

193.56 21
.0
6

60

22
.3
9

16
6.
39

14
4

185.54

65
.1
7

98.89

53
.3
6

22

111.91 60.4840.9671.47 2424

18
.9
6

18
.3
4

19
.4

62.45 2424

22
.5

21
.6
6

21
.6
6

41.71

60

6060

67

12
0

32
.3
4

13
6.
39

124.76

66.1
0

176.26

14
0

W JOHNSTON ST

E COLLEGE AV

E WASHINGTON STW WASHINGTON ST

N
 M
O
R
R
IS
O
N
 S
T

W COLLEGE AV

N
 O
N
EI
D
A 
ST

N
 S
U
PE
R
IO
R
 S
T

N
 A
PP
LE
TO

N
 S
T

W CITY CENTER ST

Library

Transit
Center

City Center

Subject Area

Library

City Hall

Transit Center

¯
0 50 100 150 20025

Feet

Blue Ramp & Conway Hotel
Planning Option Agreement Map



1 

 
      604 Clay Street                       811 E Washington, Suite 500 

    Cedar Falls, IA 50613 Madison, WI 53703 
       (319) 768-7235 (715) 450-6181 

 

 
November 29, 2019 

City of Appleton 
Department of Community & Economic Development  
100 N. Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI  54911 
 
 
Dear Appleton Stakeholders, 

On behalf of our development team, thank you for the opportunity to visit Appleton, WI and to tour 
development sites within the East College Avenue Opportunity Zone.   

Merge has pursued OZ development in small to mid-sized communities across the Midwest since the 
initiative was put into law in late 2017.  The markets we seek are usually under 100,000 in population, have 
a presence of higher-ed, and offer a compelling balance between lifestyle and cost of living.  In 2019, our 
team gained approval of two projects in the State of Wisconsin - the North Side Yard mixed-use project in 
Stevens Point ($40M project cost) as well as Mackson Corners & the Brio Building in Oshkosh ($50M 
project cost).  We continue to plan similar developments across Wisconsin, Iowa, Minnesota, and South 
Dakota - several of which will break ground next year. 

The City of Appleton’s East College Avenue Opportunity Zone has attractive features that make mixed-use 
development projects viable investments when paired with local planning efforts and incentives.  Appleton’s 
investments in district parking, strong downtown employment, and diverse retail & entertainment options 
make it an attractive place for residential density of scale.  

Two sites within the City were of near-term interest to Merge: the former Hotel Conway site and the 
former Blue Ramp Site.  Together, these sites have the potential to add significant future taxable value 
through residential density of scale.  Because of their proximity to both College Avenue and the City’s 
parking assets, the sites create an ideal place for 1) urban dwellings that offset daytime parking and 2) 
thoughtfully placed first-floor retail or amenities for residents that create a pedestrian-friendly experience. 
Our team would like to bring a sketch and estimate of project costs to facilitate a discussion about Merge 
mixed-use development on these sites.  Before we invest in an architectural concept, we would like to 
understand that the City is receptive to this type of development on these city-owned properties.  

Enclosed please find precedent projects for reference.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with questions.  

Sincerely, 

 

Brent Dahlstrom 

 



PRECEDENT  Urban Street Scape

6COM
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
6th Street & Commercial Street
Waterloo, Iowa
UNITS: 76     RETAIL: 2,000 sq ft

This project was an open lot with access to the waterfront and proximity to the bike trail. There are many autorelated 
businesses east and south, while on the west side more banks, restaurants and shops. The goal of the building and its use 
was to engage the pedestrians along Commercial Street with retail-oriented programs, bring people together at the 
courtyard level on 2nd floor, and expose residents to amazing city views. The unit mix provides attainable living options 
for young professionals – small unit scale made comfortable and practical through impeccable design.

PROJECT REFERENCE:
Quentin Hart, Mayor of Waterloo

715 Mulberry Street, Waterloo, IA 50703
Ph: (319) 291-4301



PRECEDENT  Urban Street Scape

ART BLOC
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
Art Bloc
Waterloo, Iowa
UNITS: 70     RETAIL: 1,750-3,099 sq ft

This project was one of the first Opportunity Zone developments to break ground in the nation. The existing site had 
limited “street frontage” and connectivity to the river due to height of the existing raised plaza. To create an active “first 
floor”, it was critical to create a form that linked the street plane to the plaza out to the amphitheater – an underutilized 
community asset. The site includes 70 residential units, each with a river-front view.

PROJECT REFERENCE:
Dana Jergenson,Commercial RM Team Manager

US Bank, N.A., 425 Cedar St., Waterloo, IA 50704
Ph: (319) 273-8750

Email: dana.jergenson@usbank.com



PRECEDENT  Blending University & Community

DRAKE NEIGHBORHOOD
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT

Des Moines, Iowa
UNITS: 320     RETAIL: 23,727 sq ft

The Drake University Dogtown Neighborhood Plan is the result of an exclusive agreement with Drake University to 
purchase a section of property adjacent to campus. The area is recovering from a history of deterioration of property and 
violence. The project is synonymous with Drake University taking the lead on blending University with Neighborhood for the 
greater good. Communications strategy has been of utmost importance as Drake navigates neighborhood, city, and local 
business through this new narrative. The development also includes a parking structure. 



PRECEDENT  Liner Building Attached to City Parking 

PORT OF DUBUQUE 
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
East 4th / East 5th Street
Dubuque, Iowa
UNITS: 187     RETAIL: 23,727 sq ft

The City of Dubuque spurred local development through their early investment in a district parking strategy. The 
parking structure is surrounded by a casino, a hotel, office and entertainment uses. The building is designed as a 
mass timber structure with a brick exterior, honoring the industrial urban fabric of the city with its exterior 
material and unique window frames.



PRECEDENT  Neighborhood Redevelopment Plan

MARION ROAD REDEVELOPMENT
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT

Oshkosh, Wisconsin
UNITS: 240 +     RETAIL: 30,000+ sq ft

Oshkosh, Wi is a UW-system city located where the Fox River enters Lake Winnebago. Oshkosh is known as 
"Wisconsin's Event City" because of the year-round events planned around the lake and its music festivals. The Marion 
Road Redevelopment Plan consists of 3 sites with environmental contamination due to a history of industrial uses. 
The neighborhood plan encourages community access to the water and offers a range of housing options to 
encourage a mixed-income urban neighborhood.



 

   

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: May 26, 2021 

RE: Offer to Purchase – Lot 1, CSM 3609, Lots 26, 27, 28, 29 Southpoint 
Commerce Park Plat 3 – Bose 1 Investments, LLC and 4 Ross Investments, 
LLC 

 
 
The City of Appleton has received an Offer to Purchase from Bose 1 Investments, LLC 
and 4 Ross Investments, LLC (Buyer) for Lot 1, CSM 3609, Lots 26, 27, 28, and 29 
Southpoint Commerce Park Plat 3, comprised of approximately 30.44 acres in total.    
 
The Buyer anticipates initial construction of an industrial building of a minimum 250,000 
square feet with anticipated future expansion up to 450,000 square feet.   At this time, the 
end user has not been disclosed, but we have been told the use would be light 
manufacturing/assembly and office.  Any new building will have to comply with any 
restrictions established in M-1 zoning, the deed restrictions and covenants, and building 
codes.  Occupancy of June/July 2022 is desired, so timing is of the essence. 
 
The Offer to Purchase is for the full asking price per acre of $40,000/acre with an 8% 
commission requested to procuring broker.  Closing is anticipated no later than September 
30, 2021.  
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 
The Offer to Purchase by Bose 1 Investments, LLC and 4 Ross Investments, LLC for Lot 
1, CSM 3609, Lots 26, 27, 28, and 29 Southpoint Commerce Park Plat 3, comprising a 

total of approximately 30.44 acres, for a price of $1,217,600.00 ($40,000/acre) BE 
APPROVED.   

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 





























Calumet Street (County Highway KK)

Sta
te H

igh
way 

441

Midway Road

Milis Drive

Qu
es

t D
riv

e

La
ke

lan
d D

riv
e

Eis
en

ho
we

r D
riv

e Co
op

 R
oa

d

Eis
en

ho
we

r D
riv

e

De
sti

na
tio

n D
riv

e (
Pr

iva
te)

Retail
CenterOffice

Park
26

05
26

25

All
ian

ce
 D

riv
e

Vantage Drive

Endeavor Drive 3920

Plank Road

Plank Road

Custom
OffsetsSecurity

Luebke

Farrell
Equiptment

FLAIR

9-5712-40
CSM 3549 Lot 1

7.22 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-34
Lot 34

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-39
3.64 acres

$40,000/acre

Subject Area
30 Acres

Accepted offer

NMCR

F Street 
Development

Custom
Offsets

Becknell Industrial

9-5712-25
Lot 25

SCP Plat No. 2
4.88 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-15
Lot 15

SCP Plat No. 2
4.83 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-18
Lot 18

SCP Plat No. 2
4.07 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-6
Lot 6

SCP Plat No. 1
3.01 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-24
Lot 24

SCP Plat No. 2
2.88 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-21
Lot 21

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-22
Lot 22

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-23
Lot 23

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-36
Lot 36

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre
9-5712-35

Lot 35
SCP Plat No. 3

2.59 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-37
Lot 37

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-16
Lot 16

SCP Plat No. 2
3.69 acres

$40,000/acre

Encapsys

9-5712-19
Lot 19

SCP Plat
No. 2

3.46 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-11
Lot 11

SCP Plat No. 1
3.25 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-14
Lot 14

SCP Plat No. 2
2.16 acres

$40,000 per acre

9-5712-5
Lot 5

SCP Plat No. 1
2.32 acres

$40,000/acre

Appleton
Hydraulic

Components

Southpoint Commerce Park
Appleton, Wisconsin

Prepared by City of Appleton
Comm. & Econ. Dev. Dept. 5/2021

0 400 800200
FeetÜ

Legend
City Limits
Park Boundary
Subject Area
Accepted Offer
For Sale (City Owned)
Privately Owned Parcels



andershm
Text Box
Exhibit B Deed Restrictions

























R-21 Chemical Root Foaming of Sanitary Sewers (#7792431)

Owner: Appleton WI, City of

Solicitor: Appleton WI, City of

05/17/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Duke's Root Control

Section TitleLine Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension

R-21 BASE BID $22,321.61

1 8"/9" Sanitary Sewer lin.ft. 5052 $1.27 $6,416.04

2 10" Sanitary Sewer lin.ft. 4785 $1.27 $6,076.95

3 12" Sanitary Sewer lin.ft. 3506 $1.27 $4,452.62

4 15" Sanitary Sewer lin.ft. 1070 $1.27 $1,358.90

5 18" Sanitary Sewer lin.ft. 395 $3.98 $1,572.10

6 21" Sanitary Sewer lin.ft. 500 $4.89 $2,445.00

Base Bid Total: $22,321.61



3 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915-3128 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

To: Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 

 

From: Utilities Deputy Director, Chris Stempa 

 

Date: May 19, 2021 

 

Re: Utilities Committee Action: Award the 2021 Secondary Clarifier Drive removal, 

Rebuild, and Reinstallation Contract to Sabel Mechanical in the amount of $174,302 

with 15% contingency of $26,145 for a project total not to exceed $200,447. 

 

Utilities Committee Action: Award the Sole Source Purchase of Secondary 

Clarifier Drive Rebuild Parts through Evoqua Water Technologies LLC in the amount 

of $105,964. 

 

 

There are six secondary clarifiers located on the east/southeast side of the Appleton 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) campus.  Each clarifier is 100 feet in diameter and 18 

feet deep with a volume equal to 1,060,000 gallons. The clarifiers function as sedimentation 

tanks that remove flocs of biological growth generated in upstream activated sludge processes.  

The “mixed liquor” flow from activated sludge processes that contains the previously 

described floc is split between each of the six secondary clarifiers from which settled solids 

are collected for additional treatment.  The treated water then flows downstream where it 

eventually is discharged to the Lower Fox River.   

 

Each secondary clarifier is equipped with a continuously rotating collection mechanism for 

settled secondary sludge that is powered by Envirex HT60 drive units.  The drive units were 

installed as part the major upgrades project in the early 1990's.  The Utilities Department 

identified a 2021 CIP to replace all six drive units based on evidence of component wear and 

the potential for failure.  A wholesale rebuild event commonly occurs every 10 years 

according to the manufacturer.  The existing original drive units have now eclipsed the typical 

life expectancy of 25 years after continuous use.  This is a testament to the robust construction 

of the clarifier equipment and the ongoing preventative maintenance program of staff.   

 

In March 2021, an onsite inspection was performed to assess the condition of the clarifiers and 

determine if a rebuild option might be a viable alternative to complete replacement.  The 

inspection revealed that the existing clarifier drives units were a good candidate for a rebuild.   

The rebuild option was anticipated to be up to 50% less than a wholesale replacement.  A 



Utilities Committee Memo – 2021 AWWTP Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild 

May 19, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

preliminary cost for a complete drive replacement was solicited in 2020 which totaled 

$561,000 (excludes engineering and contingency costs). The original equipment manufacturer 

(OEM) of the clarifier drives, Evoqua Water Technologies LLC (Evoqua), was asked to 

provide a separate lump sum cost as part of an off-site build that is described further within 

this memorandum. Evoqua would provide all necessary parts and services including a 

standard one-year warranty as part of their factory circular drive rebuild program.  

 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS: REMOVAL, REBUILD, AND 

REINSTALLATION: 

Based on those findings of the clarifier inspection, a Request for Quotation (RFQ) process was 

advanced to solicit costs from reputable contractors who would be tasked to remove and 

reinstall the drive units along with performing various repairs to structural components outside 

of the drive mechanisms.  The RFQ process was completed during April 2021. Quotes were 

solicited from three contractors that possessed prior experience with wastewater clarifier drive 

removal and reinstallation services. The quotes are summarized in Table 1. Sabel Mechanical 

(Sabel) provided the least cost quote and has successfully completed other project work for the 

Department of Utilities in the past.   

 

 Table 1: Secondary Clarifier Drive Work RFQ Summary 

Company Total 

Sabel Mechanical $94,740 

Staab Construction $138,884 

August Winter & Sons $179,298 

 

Upon receiving the quotes for removal and reinstallation services, Evoqua indicated that it has 

worked with select contractors in Wisconsin who have rebuilt the Envirex clarifier drive units 

for other wastewater treatment plants.  Sabel is experienced with rebuilding Envirex clarifier 

drives at their facility in Fond du Lac, Wisconsin.  As such, Sabel was asked to provide a 

competitive quote for rebuild services.  Within this scenario, the itemized costs identified by 

Evoqua for replacement equipment and rebuild parts would remain the same as their original 

quote with the option remaining to the City to act upon rebuild services if desired.  Sabel 

would still honor the standard one-year warranty that Evoqua offered as part of their factory 

circular drive rebuild program.  The results of the quotation process are summarized in Table 

2.  The Sabel quote was $29,938 less than Evoqua’s for rebuild services.  Award of the rebuild 

services to Sabel would also significantly reduce the amount of time each clarifier would be 

out of service because of transportation logistics (Fond du Lac vs. Atlanta, Gorgia).  The total 

quoted cost from Sabel was $174,302 after including the removal and reinstallation cost from 

Table 1 above. 

 

Table 2: Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild Services 

Description Evoqua Sabel 

Rebuild Services $109,500 $79,562 

Note: with removal and reinstallation cost 

 



Utilities Committee Memo – 2021 AWWTP Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild 

May 19, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS – OEM SOLE SOURCE PARTS & REBUILD 

SERVICES 

Evoqua provided a quotation for the necessary rebuild parts identified during the March 2, 

2021 conditions assessment.  As the Envirex HT60 clarifier OEM, Evoqua is the sole 

distributor of these parts required for the rebuild work.  Table 3 summarizes the parts that will 

provided by Evoqua as part of the sole source purchase which includes startup support as part 

of post rebuild commissioning.   

Table 3: Evoqua Clarifier Drive Rebuild Parts Quote  
Description Evoqua Quote 

WIPER-SKIMMER,3.5 X 70 X .19"TH,NEOPRENE $886.80 

WIPER-SKIMMER,3.5 X 5.5 X .19"TH,NEOPRNE $274.20 

WIPER-SKIMMER,5.5 X 7 X .19"THK,NEOPRENE $258.00 

SQUEEGE-FLDZNG VANE,0.25 x 3 x -FT,NEOPRENE $2,745.00 

SEAL-MANF, 3.625"W X 600"L X 0.25"THK $4,000.00 

KIT,CLAMP W/BAND 50' X.62" FSTNRS & SPLC $900.00 

FIELD SERVICE START UP (1) TRIPS - (1) DAY PER 

CLARIFIER 
$13,200.00 

H60LT DRIVE REBUILD PARTS $82,500.00 

SHIPPING $1,200 

Total $105,964.00 
 

SUMMARY 

The combined not to exceed total cost for both actionable recommendations are 52% less than 

the contractor and equipment line-item amount allocated within the CIP budget ($637,500).  

That number was based on a wholesale replacement because of various unknowns at the time 

with the existing 30-year old equipment.  The rebuild work outlined above will provide a 

renewed life expectancy of 20-25 years which is comparable to new replacement clarifier 

drives.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 1: 

I am requesting an award of the Secondary Clarifier Drive Removal, Rebuild, and 

Reinstallation Contract to Sabel Mechanical as part of the “2021 Secondary Clarifier Rebuild 

Project" in the amount of $174,302 with 15% contingency of $26,145 for a project total not to 

exceed $200,447. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 2: 

I am requesting sole source purchase award of Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild Parts 

through Evoqua Water Technologies LLC as part of “2021 Secondary Clarifier Rebuild 

Project" in the amount of $105,964   

 

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this project please 

contact Chris Stempa at 920-832-5945.   



3 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915-3128 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

To: Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 

 

From: Utilities Deputy Director, Chris Stempa 

 

Date: May 19, 2021 

 

Re: Utilities Committee Action: Award the 2021 Secondary Clarifier Drive removal, 

Rebuild, and Reinstallation Contract to Sabel Mechanical in the amount of $174,302 

with 15% contingency of $26,145 for a project total not to exceed $200,447. 

 

Utilities Committee Action: Award the Sole Source Purchase of Secondary 

Clarifier Drive Rebuild Parts through Evoqua Water Technologies LLC in the amount 

of $105,964. 

 

 

There are six secondary clarifiers located on the east/southeast side of the Appleton 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) campus.  Each clarifier is 100 feet in diameter and 18 

feet deep with a volume equal to 1,060,000 gallons. The clarifiers function as sedimentation 

tanks that remove flocs of biological growth generated in upstream activated sludge processes.  

The “mixed liquor” flow from activated sludge processes that contains the previously 

described floc is split between each of the six secondary clarifiers from which settled solids 

are collected for additional treatment.  The treated water then flows downstream where it 

eventually is discharged to the Lower Fox River.   

 

Each secondary clarifier is equipped with a continuously rotating collection mechanism for 

settled secondary sludge that is powered by Envirex HT60 drive units.  The drive units were 

installed as part the major upgrades project in the early 1990's.  The Utilities Department 

identified a 2021 CIP to replace all six drive units based on evidence of component wear and 

the potential for failure.  A wholesale rebuild event commonly occurs every 10 years 

according to the manufacturer.  The existing original drive units have now eclipsed the typical 

life expectancy of 25 years after continuous use.  This is a testament to the robust construction 

of the clarifier equipment and the ongoing preventative maintenance program of staff.   

 

In March 2021, an onsite inspection was performed to assess the condition of the clarifiers and 

determine if a rebuild option might be a viable alternative to complete replacement.  The 

inspection revealed that the existing clarifier drives units were a good candidate for a rebuild.   

The rebuild option was anticipated to be up to 50% less than a wholesale replacement.  A 



Utilities Committee Memo – 2021 AWWTP Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild 

May 19, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

preliminary cost for a complete drive replacement was solicited in 2020 which totaled 

$561,000 (excludes engineering and contingency costs). The original equipment manufacturer 

(OEM) of the clarifier drives, Evoqua Water Technologies LLC (Evoqua), was asked to 

provide a separate lump sum cost as part of an off-site build that is described further within 

this memorandum. Evoqua would provide all necessary parts and services including a 

standard one-year warranty as part of their factory circular drive rebuild program.  

 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS: REMOVAL, REBUILD, AND 

REINSTALLATION: 

Based on those findings of the clarifier inspection, a Request for Quotation (RFQ) process was 

advanced to solicit costs from reputable contractors who would be tasked to remove and 

reinstall the drive units along with performing various repairs to structural components outside 

of the drive mechanisms.  The RFQ process was completed during April 2021. Quotes were 

solicited from three contractors that possessed prior experience with wastewater clarifier drive 

removal and reinstallation services. The quotes are summarized in Table 1. Sabel Mechanical 

(Sabel) provided the least cost quote and has successfully completed other project work for the 

Department of Utilities in the past.   

 

 Table 1: Secondary Clarifier Drive Work RFQ Summary 

Company Total 

Sabel Mechanical $94,740 

Staab Construction $138,884 

August Winter & Sons $179,298 

 

Upon receiving the quotes for removal and reinstallation services, Evoqua indicated that it has 

worked with select contractors in Wisconsin who have rebuilt the Envirex clarifier drive units 

for other wastewater treatment plants.  Sabel is experienced with rebuilding Envirex clarifier 

drives at their facility in Fond du Lac, Wisconsin.  As such, Sabel was asked to provide a 

competitive quote for rebuild services.  Within this scenario, the itemized costs identified by 

Evoqua for replacement equipment and rebuild parts would remain the same as their original 

quote with the option remaining to the City to act upon rebuild services if desired.  Sabel 

would still honor the standard one-year warranty that Evoqua offered as part of their factory 

circular drive rebuild program.  The results of the quotation process are summarized in Table 

2.  The Sabel quote was $29,938 less than Evoqua’s for rebuild services.  Award of the rebuild 

services to Sabel would also significantly reduce the amount of time each clarifier would be 

out of service because of transportation logistics (Fond du Lac vs. Atlanta, Gorgia).  The total 

quoted cost from Sabel was $174,302 after including the removal and reinstallation cost from 

Table 1 above. 

 

Table 2: Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild Services 

Description Evoqua Sabel 

Rebuild Services $109,500 $79,562 

Note: with removal and reinstallation cost 

 



Utilities Committee Memo – 2021 AWWTP Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild 

May 19, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS – OEM SOLE SOURCE PARTS & REBUILD 

SERVICES 

Evoqua provided a quotation for the necessary rebuild parts identified during the March 2, 

2021 conditions assessment.  As the Envirex HT60 clarifier OEM, Evoqua is the sole 

distributor of these parts required for the rebuild work.  Table 3 summarizes the parts that will 

provided by Evoqua as part of the sole source purchase which includes startup support as part 

of post rebuild commissioning.   

Table 3: Evoqua Clarifier Drive Rebuild Parts Quote  
Description Evoqua Quote 

WIPER-SKIMMER,3.5 X 70 X .19"TH,NEOPRENE $886.80 

WIPER-SKIMMER,3.5 X 5.5 X .19"TH,NEOPRNE $274.20 

WIPER-SKIMMER,5.5 X 7 X .19"THK,NEOPRENE $258.00 

SQUEEGE-FLDZNG VANE,0.25 x 3 x -FT,NEOPRENE $2,745.00 

SEAL-MANF, 3.625"W X 600"L X 0.25"THK $4,000.00 

KIT,CLAMP W/BAND 50' X.62" FSTNRS & SPLC $900.00 

FIELD SERVICE START UP (1) TRIPS - (1) DAY PER 

CLARIFIER 
$13,200.00 

H60LT DRIVE REBUILD PARTS $82,500.00 

SHIPPING $1,200 

Total $105,964.00 
 

SUMMARY 

The combined not to exceed total cost for both actionable recommendations are 52% less than 

the contractor and equipment line-item amount allocated within the CIP budget ($637,500).  

That number was based on a wholesale replacement because of various unknowns at the time 

with the existing 30-year old equipment.  The rebuild work outlined above will provide a 

renewed life expectancy of 20-25 years which is comparable to new replacement clarifier 

drives.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 1: 

I am requesting an award of the Secondary Clarifier Drive Removal, Rebuild, and 

Reinstallation Contract to Sabel Mechanical as part of the “2021 Secondary Clarifier Rebuild 

Project" in the amount of $174,302 with 15% contingency of $26,145 for a project total not to 

exceed $200,447. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 2: 

I am requesting sole source purchase award of Secondary Clarifier Drive Rebuild Parts 

through Evoqua Water Technologies LLC as part of “2021 Secondary Clarifier Rebuild 

Project" in the amount of $105,964   

 

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this project please 

contact Chris Stempa at 920-832-5945.   



 
 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

 

 

TO:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 
 

FROM: Chris Stempa, Utilities Deputy Director 
 

DATE: May 21, 2021  
 

RE: Approve Contract Amendment #1 to McMahon for 2021 Solids 

Dewatering Equipment Upgrades to increase for additional HVAC 

design and construction management services in the amount of $27,000 

resulting in a decrease to contingency from $32,587 to $5,587. Overall 

contract increased from $325,872 to $352,872 
 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) 2021 Solids Dewatering 

Equipment Upgrades Project engineering service contract was awarded to McMahon by 

Common Council on February 3, 2021.  

 

The engineering services provided by McMahon will guide the rehabilitation of existing 

equipment which has reached its useful life and associated upgrades along with schedule 

of estimated costs that will address immediate and long-term needs.  The final design 

shall consider cost, functionality, versatility, expandability, efficiency, and safety.  The 

City will evaluate each design concept or alternative as part of Phase II work from which 

a project will be developed for construction in 2022 and 2023. 

 

During the design process for 2021 Solids Dewatering Equipment Upgrades Project it 

was determined that a complete HVAC system upgrade within the V-Building is needed 

as opposed to a upgrades limited only to the solids dewatering floor. The requirements 

needed for the new dewatering equipment would cause unexpected consequences with 

the existing equipment. The completion the entire HVAC system would also maximize 

the overall system efficiency by including heat recovery and optimizations to the upper 

heating loop operation. 

 

The intent of advancing Amendment #1 is to take advantage of HVAC design 

improvements identified within McMahon’s existing contract and bundle it with the 

opportunity to optimize the greater HVAC system that is interconnected within V-

Building.   

 



Utilities Committee Memo 

2021 Solids Dewatering Equipment Upgrades Engineering Services Contract Amendment #1 - McMahon 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The cost of additional engineering design and construction management services outlined 

Contract Amendment #1 totals $27,000.  This amendment would result in the 2021 Solids 

Dewatering Equipment Upgrades contract with McMahon increasing from $325,872 to 

$352,872 and a decrease to contingency from $32,587 to $5,587.  If you have any 

questions regarding this project, please contact Chris Stempa at ph: 832-5945. 

 



 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.”  

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

 

 

TO:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee  

   

FROM: Environmental Programs Coordinator Brian Kreski 

 

DATE: May 20, 2021 

 

RE: Award Biosolids Compost Processing Contract Extension to Hsu Growing 

Supply for an extended one (1) year term ending December 31, 2021. 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) has operated a biosolids compost facility 

since the fall of 2010.  Since its conception, the AWWTP has successfully contracted with Hsu 

Growing Supply (Hsu) for compost processing services.  Year-end 2020 marked the end of the 

fourth consecutive contract term with Hsu.  The last Organic Recycling Contractor Services 

request for quote (RFQ) process was completed on March 1, 2017.  At that time Hsu’s was the 

only company of six to be responsive to the utility’s RFQ.  Reasons provided by the non-responsive 

companies included the inability to meet necessary qualifications, the inability to be competitive 

based on process frequency and distance to mobilize equipment, and/or the services requested were 

outside of their preferred business model.   

 

2017 RFQ PROCESS: 

 

In the 2017 RFQ process, proposing companies were asked to quote on specific processing 

volumes based on preferred compost operations. The Compost Program budget and contract award 

amount (over four years) is based on processing three “batches” of material annually for a total of 

16,000 cubic yards (5,333 yards per batch).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Table 1: Organic Recycling Contractor Services Quotes 

Note: DNQ: Did Not Quote 

 

Contract language was developed within the 2017-2020 contract that allowed for a one year 

extension by mutual agreement. The proposed contract extension would maintain the existing 

pricing from the contract (see Table 1).  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

I recommend a contract extension for organic recycling services for an additional year be awarded 

to Hsu for the term ending December 31, 2021. If you have any questions regarding this project, 

please contact Brian Kreski at 920-832-2316. 
 

Company Compost Processing Stockpiling 

 2,500 YD 5,000 YD 10,000 YD 3,500 YD 

Hsu Growing Supply $19,125 $26,250 $42,500 $12,075 

Purple Cow Organics, LLC  DNQ   

Veolia   DNQ   

Soil Solutions  DNQ   

Synagro Technologies  DNQ   

Vandenberg Trucking  DNQ   



18-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 23 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 
OF APPLETON AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP WHICH IS A PART THEREOF, BY 
MAKING THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT AS NOW PROVIDED. 

(City Plan Commission 6/2/2021) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1: That Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton and the Official Zoning Map, which is a part thereof, is amended by making the following 

changes: 

 
To rezone lands generally located south of Lawrence Street, west of Durkee Street, 
north of Water Street, and east of Morrison Street consisting of 15 parcels (Tax Id 
#31-2-0159-00, #31-2-0160-00, #31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-2-0164-00, 
#31-2-0165-00, #31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, #31-2-0168-00, #31-2-0169-00, 
#31-2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-0172-00, #31-2-0173-00, and #31-2-0174-00) 
), including to the centerline of the adjacent South Morrison Street, East Lawrence 
Street, South Durkee Street, East Water Street, East Kimball Street, and South Oak 
Street right-of-way, from R-1B Single-Family District, R-3 Multi-Family District, 
and P-I Public Institutional District to CBD Central Business District. (Rezoning #4-
21 – US Venture) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Tax Id #31-2-0159-00, #31-2-0160-00, #31-2-0161-00, #31-2-0163-00, #31-2-
0164-00, #31-2-0165-00, #31-2-0166-00, #31-2-0167-00, #31-2-0168-00, #31-2-
0169-00, #31-2-0170-00, #31-2-0171-00, #31-2-0172-00, #31-2-0173-00, and 
#31-2-0174-00. 
 
All of Lots 1, 2, the east 16.2 feet of Lot 3 and all of Lots 5 thru 14 inclusive in 
block 12 of the Appleton Plat, all in Government Lot 2, Section 26, Town 21 
North, Range 17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin.  Including 
the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of South Morrison Street, East Lawrence 
Street, South Durkee Street, East Water Street, East Kimball Street, and South 
Oak Street. 
    
 
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 
 
15 parcels generally located south of Lawrence Street, west of Durkee Street, north of 



Water Street, and east of Morrison Street, including to the centerline of existing adjacent 
right-of-way 
 
Section 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication the Director of Community and Economic 

Development is authorized and directed to make the necessary changes to the Official Zoning Map 

in accordance with this Ordinance. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 5-19-21
	0002_1_6-1-21 reappointment BOR
	0004_1_Pride Month Proclamation
	0004_2_CPR AED Awareness Week Proclamation
	0004_3_Gun Violence Awareness Day Proclamation
	0004_4_Juneteenth Celebration Day Proclamation
	0005_1_COVID -19 Cases June 01
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	VACCINATIONS  TO  DATE   (05/31/21)

	0006_1_RZ 4-21_Notice of Public Hearing
	RE: Proposed Zone Change

	0007_1_Public Hearing - Prospect and Douglas
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE VACATED:

	0008_1_Final Resolution Prospect and Douglas
	0009_1_717 N Richmond St
	0010_1_Miller Electric-Douglas Street
	0011_1_YMCA Ramp footings
	0012_1_ADI-Street Music Week
	0013_1_Trout Museum of Art SL
	0014_1_Poplar Hall
	0015_1_2021-22 Alcohol License Renewals-2nd set FINAL
	0016_1_Corey Antonio Gaines
	0017_1_Trout Museum Exhibit Opening SL
	0018_1_2021 Additional Amusement Devices
	0019_1_StaffReport_USVenture_Rezoning_For05-12-21
	Sheets and Views
	8.5X11Portrait
	PLOT



	0020_1_StaffReport_FinalPlat_1stAddBroadwayHillsEstates_For5-26-21
	6405Final-1 of 2
	6405Final-2 of 2

	0021_1_8-R-21 Knowles-Nelson Program w-attach-rev
	#8-R-21 Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program
	KN.LOOPTHELITTLELAKE.REVISEDFEB28
	KN.NelsonCrossing
	KN.SummaryREVISEDAPRIL1

	0022_1_Award of Contract Unit E-21
	0023_1_Award of Contract Unit L-21 Rebid
	0024_1_Award of Contract Unit Y-21
	0025_1_Award of Contract Unit AA-21
	0026_1_Land Acquisition
	0027_1_Merge Option Extension Memo_5-26-21
	0027_2_20-0044 - MERGE - 2nd Extension - 05-19-2021
	0027_3_Merge Option Term Extension 1_November 2020
	0027_4_Signed Planning Option Agreement_Merge_2-6-20
	0027_5_Map_Blue Ramp+Conway Hotel
	0027_6_Letter of Intent_Merge_11-29-19
	0027_7_Merge Projects + References
	0028_1_Bose 1 Investments and 4 Ross Investments OTP Memo_5-26-21
	0028_2_Bose 1 Investments and 4 Ross Investments OTP_5-18-21
	0028_3_SouthpointCommerceParkMap_SubjectParcel_5_2021
	0028_4_SPCP Deed Restrictions
	0029_1_R-21 Bid Tab
	0030_1_210519_Finance Memo_Final Clarifier Rebuild Work
	0031_1_210519_Finance Memo_Final Clarifier Rebuild Work
	0032_1_utilities memo - Engineering Dewatering Equipment 05-21-21
	0033_1_210517_UCM_HSU_contract extension 2021
	0034_1_Ordinances Going to Council 6-2-21
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION:




